
City of Pleasant Ridge 

23925 Woodward Avenue 

Pleasant Ridge, Michigan 48069 

City Commission Meeting 

March 13, 2018 

Agenda 

Honorable Mayor, City Commissioners and Residents: This shall serve as your official notification 
of the Public Hearing and Regular City Commission Meeting to be held Tuesday, March 13, 2018, at 
7:30 p.m., in the City Commission Chambers, 23925 Woodward Avenue, Pleasant Ridge, Michigan 
48069.  The following items are on the Agenda for your consideration: 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING – 7:30 P.M. 
1. Meeting Called to Order.

2. Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Roll Call.

4. PUBLIC DISCUSSION – items not on the Agenda.

5. Introduction of Officer Gregory Hadfield.

6. Governmental Reports.

7. 2018 City/Pleasant Ridge Foundation Project Announcement.

8. Ferndale Public Schools update by Superintendent Dania Bazzi.

9. City Commission Liaison Reports.
• Commissioner Perry – Planning/DDA
• Commissioner Scott – Historical Commission
• Commissioner Wahl – Recreation Commission
• Commissioner Krzysiak – Ferndale Public Schools

10. Consent Agenda.
All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Commission, will be enacted by one motion and approved by a roll call vote. There 
will be no separate discussion of these items unless a City Commissioner or visitor so requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda 
and considered as the last item of business.

a. Minutes of the Regular City Commission Meeting held Tuesday, February 13, 2018.
b. Monthly Disbursement Report.
c. Request by the Seventh-Day Adventist Church to solicit door-to-door from June 3 –

August 11, 2018.
d. Certification of delinquent utility bills for collection on the 2018 Summer Tax Roll.
e. Supplemental Appropriation A-2018-001. 



 

 

f. Resolution in support of the March of Our Lives event to be held Saturday, March 
24, 2018.  

 
11. Public Hearings and Ordinance Amendments.  

a. PUBLIC HEARING – Solicitation of public comments on an amendment to the 
Pleasant Ridge City Code, Chapter 14, Building and Building Regulation, by the 
addition of Article VII - False Alarms. 

b. Ordinance to amend the Pleasant Ridge City Code, Chapter 14, Building and 
Building Regulation, by the addition of Article VII - False Alarms. 

c. PUBLIC HEARING – Solicitation of public comments on an amendment to the 
Pleasant Ridge City Code, Chapter 34, Nuisance, Article III, Section 34-52, by the 
addition to a new section (13), regarding storage of unlicensed automobiles. 

d. Ordinance to amend the Pleasant Ridge City Code, Chapter 34, Nuisance, Article III, 
Section 34-52, by the addition to a new section (13), regarding storage of unlicensed 
automobiles. 

e. PUBLIC HEARING – Solicitation of public comments on an amendment to the 
Pleasant Ridge City Code, Chapter 70, Traffic, Section 70-21, Violation and 
Penalties, regarding OUI cost recovery. 

f. Ordinance to amend the Pleasant Ridge City Code, Chapter 70, Traffic, Section 70-
21, Violation and Penalties, regarding OUI cost recovery. 

g. PUBLIC HEARING – Solicitation of public comments on an amendment to the 
Pleasant Ridge City Code, Chapter 70, Section 70-86, Notice and 70-87, Failure to 
Pay, regarding OUI cost recovery collection. 

h. Ordinance to amend the Pleasant Ridge City Code, Chapter 70, Section 70-86, 
Notice and 70-87, Failure to Pay, regarding OUI cost recovery collection. 

  
12. 2018 HMA Resurfacing Project Bid Award. 
 
13. SEMCOG TAP Grant Letter of Support:  Regional Bike Share Project. 
 
14. City Manager’s Report. 
  
15. Other Business. 
 
16. Adjournment.    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In the spirit of compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals with a disability 
should feel free to contact the City at least seventy-two (72) hours in advance of the meeting, if 
requesting accommodations. 



1 

City of Pleasant Ridge 

23925 Woodward Avenue 

Pleasant Ridge, Michigan 48069 

Regular City Commission Meeting 
February 13, 2018 

Having been duly publicized, Mayor Metzger called the meeting to order at 7:31 p.m. 

Present: Commissioners Krzysiak, Perry, Scott, Wahl, Mayor Metzger 
Also Present: City Manager Breuckman, City Attorney Need, City Clerk Drealan 
Absent:  None 

Public Discussion 
(None) 

Governmental Reports 
Chief Kevin Sullivan, Ferndale Fire Department, noted that there were four retirements at the end 
of 2017 including the Fire Marshall.  Three new people have been hired this month which will mean 
that there will be seven people in the Department with one-year experience or less.  There are now 
three positions to fill.  The number of applicants has dropped significantly.   

Chief Kevin Nowak, Pleasant Ridge Police Department, noted that residents are required to clear 
their sidewalks.  He also noted that pushing the snow into the street is not permitted.  It would also 
be helpful if residents removed their cars from the street, even if a snow emergency has not been 
declared.  He reminded everyone that garbage day is Monday.  Cans should not go out before 6:00 
p.m. on Sunday and they should be removed within 12 hours of collection.

City Commission Liaison Reports 
Commissioner Krzysiak reported on Ferndale Public Schools.  Suburban Ford of Ferndale hosted a 
"drive for your school" event.  The event raised $3900 for camp scholarships and other school 
programs.  University High School teachers and administration developed a new program called 
Target Time to help students recover and make progress after disappointing test scores.  In the most 
recent session, 158 students participated and 67 of them remediated their failing scores and achieved 
passing grades.  Two Ferndale Middle School students, Ruby Speedwell and Tiana Bartley, had their 
artwork displayed at the Student Art Town Exhibition.   Ms. Bartley's photo won second place out of 
all the middle school students in metro Detroit.  Ferndale Schools received a grant from DTE for 
LED exterior lighting which will result in savings of $8600 per year.  Spanish will now be offered in 
sixth grade.  The Superintendent will attend the March City Council meeting to discuss the district's 
strategic planning process.  The Superintendent challenged the students to send her a photograph of 
them reading on their recent snow day.  The Commissioners brought their own books and took a 
picture to send to the Superintendent as well.   

Item 10a



2 
 

 
Commissioner Perry reported on the Planning Commission/DDA.  The Planning Commission had a 
public hearing on February 5th for special land use for the Sunoco gas station which is now permitted 
to sell beer and wine beginning this month.  They reappointed the Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary.  
The DDA held a new year gathering of local businesses which was very well attended including people 
from Iron Ridge.  They also discussed adding decorative planters.  The next meeting is February 26th.  
Updating the Woodward streetscape will be on the agenda.  The existing streetscape is 30 years old.   
 
Commissioner Scott reported on the Historical Commission.  There was a special meeting in February 
regarding the 100-year home plaques.  The lighting has been installed at Stevenson Park.  Next meeting 
is March 7th.     
 
Commissioner Wahl reported on the Recreation Commission.  The Recreation Commission met on 
January 31st and discussed the community garden.  It is sold out and ten additional plots are being 
added.  The Daddy/Daughter dance was a success with 40 couples participating.  Applications for 
summer counselors and life guards are due by March 2nd.  St. Patrick's Bingo is March 8th.  The egg 
hunt and pancake breakfast is March 24th at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Consent Agenda 

18-3354 
Motion by Commissioner Perry, second by Commissioner Wahl, to approve the consent agenda as 
amended.   
 
Adopted:   Yeas:  Commissioners Perry, Wahl, Krzysiak, Scott, Mayor Metzger 
   Nays:  None 
 
Establishing public hearings on Tuesday, March 13, 2018 at 7:30 pm to solicit public 
comments on the following ordinance amendments: 
 a.  Amendment to the Pleasant Ridge City Code, Chapter 14, Building and Building  
  Regulation, by the addition of Article VII - False Alarms. 
 b.  Amendment to the Pleasant Ridge City Code, Chapter 34, Nuisance, Article III,  
  Section 34-52, by the addition to a new section (13), regarding storage of unlicensed  
  automobiles. 
 c.  Amendment to the Pleasant Ridge City Code, Chapter 70, Traffic, Section 70-21,  
  Violation and Penalties, regarding OUI cost recovery. 
 d.  Amendment to the Pleasant Ridge City Code, Chapter 70, Section 70-86, Notice and  
  70-87, Failure to Pay, regarding OUI cost recovery collection. 
 
City Manager Breuckman indicated that these ordinance amendments have been requested by the 
police department.  Some are the result of recent changes in state law.  The false alarm amendment is 
intended to encourage residents to address the underlying cause of frequent false alarm calls.  It also 
sets some standards regarding audible alarms.  The second ordinance specifically deals with storage of 
unlicensed or inoperable vehicles which were previously only covered by the general nuisance 
ordinances.  It excludes vehicles stored in garages and only addresses vehicles in yards or on the street.  
The two OUI ordinances are housekeeping matters to match changes in state law.   
 
Commissioner Krzysiak asked how many times the vehicle storage issue has had to be addressed.  The 
Deputy Chief noted that the occurrences have been fairly rare.  The issue is usually corrected by the 



3 

homeowner without the need for ticketing.  Chief Nowak indicated that a more specific ordinance 
would be very helpful especially when there are multiple nuisance issues at a particular residence.  He 
also noted that CLEMIS can now track false alarm reports.  There was a discussion regarding the 
process and necessity of responding to alarms.  The fees and fines applied to false alarms were also 
discussed.  City Attorney Need noted that three false alarm calls can occur without penalty.   

18-3355
Motion by Commissioner Perry, second by Commissioner Scott, to schedule these public hearings on 
Tuesday, March 13, 2018.   

Adopted: Yeas:  Commissioners Perry, Scott, Krzysiak, Wahl, Mayor Metzger 
Nays:  None 

City Manager's Report 
City Manager Breuckman presented the MParks design award for Gainsboro Park.  Construction bids 
have been solicited to reconstruct Ridge, Indiana and Bermuda.  He presented slides for some of the 
proposed construction projects including improving the crosswalk near the school.  Indiana, Ridge 
and Bermuda will be redone with asphalt which is less expensive and quicker to install.  The 
intersection with Sylvan will be concrete to match the existing road.  Colored concrete will be installed 
to highlight the crosswalk.  These will be primarily summer projects that will be presented for approval 
at the March meeting.  The permeable asphalt at Kensington is performing well.    

Other Business 
Commissioner Krzysiak noted that February's book, Underground Railroad, by Colson Whitehead is very 
powerful and will be discussed at the February 14th meeting.  The March book will be Unconventional 
Leadership, by Nancy Schlichting, the CEO of Henry Ford Health System.   

With no further business or discussion, Mayor Metzger adjourned the meeting at 8:22 p.m. 

__________________________________ 
Mayor Kurt Metzger 

__________________________________ 
Amy M. Drealan, City Clerk 
/dleg 



PAYROLL LIABILITIES 6,766.83$   

TAX LIABILITIES 175,014.43$   

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 797,683.82$   

TOTAL 979,465.08$   

February 14, 2018 36,438.56$   

February 28, 2018 34,738.85$   

TOTAL 71,177.41$   

February 2018

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

PAYROLL

Item 10b



PG 1

Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

2/14/2018 2073 ALERUS FINANCIAL RETIRMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 417.80$    

2/14/2018 2074 ALERUS FINANCIAL RETIRMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 1,409.60$     

2/14/2018 2075 ALERUS FINANCIAL RETIRMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 946.72$    

2/14/2018 2076 MIFOP UNION DUES 181.00$    

2/14/2018 2077 MISDU FOC DEDUCTIONS 224.60$    

2/14/2018 2078 ALERUS FINANCIAL RHSP CONTRIBUTIONS 323.34$    

2/28/2018 2079 ALERUS FINANCIAL RETIRMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 417.80$    

2/28/2018 2080 ALERUS FINANCIAL RETIRMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 1,294.60$     

2/28/2018 2081 ALERUS FINANCIAL RETIRMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 1,003.43$     

2/28/2018 2082 MISDU FOC DEDUCTIONS 224.60$    

2/28/2018 2083 ALERUS FINANCIAL RHSP CONTRIBUTIONS 323.34$    

TOTAL PAYROLL LIABILITIES 6,766.83$     

February 2018

CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE

PAYROLL LIABILITIES 



PG 2

Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

02/12/2018 2544 ANTHONY AGIUS 2017 TAX OVERPAYMENT 2,100.16$     

02/12/2018 2545 CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE-DDA 2017 TAX COLLECTIONS 5,253.06$     

02/12/2018 2546 CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE-GENERAL 2017 TAX COLLECTIONS 32.97$     

02/12/2018 2547 CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE-TAXES 2017 TAX COLLECTIONS 67,172.25$     

02/12/2018 2548 FERNDALE SCHOOL DISTRICT 2017 TAX COLLECTIONS 29,117.95$     

02/12/2018 2549 IRON RIDGE LLC 2017 TAX OVERPAYMENT 5,247.99$     

02/12/2018 2550 LESLIE EDWARDS 2017 TAX OVERPAYMENT 15.68$     

02/12/2018 2551 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER 2017 TAX COLLECTIONS 66,074.37$     

TOTAL TAX LIABILITIES 175,014.43$     

CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE CHECK REGISTER

February 2018

TAX LIABILITIES 



PG 3

Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

2/13/2018 21806 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN HEALTH CARE BENEFITS 18,051.18$     

2/13/2018 21807 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN HEALTHCARE BENEFITS 8,168.05$     

2/13/2018 21808 ACCUSHRED, LLC SHREDDING SERVICES 55.00$     

2/13/2018 21809 AMY DREALAN PERFORMANCE INSTALLMENT 600.00$     

2/13/2018 21810 ANDERSON, ECKSTEIN & WESTRICK ENGINEERING SERVICES 26,632.23$     

2/13/2018 21811 BADGER METER, INC. UTILITY SUPPLIES AND SERVICE 969.84$     

2/13/2018 21812 BILL SNETHKAMP DODGE PD VEHICLE REPAIRS 440.00$     

2/13/2018 21813 BRILAR DPW CONTRACT SERVICES 50,331.17$     

2/13/2018 21814 CITY OF FERNDALE FIRE SERVICES CONTRACT 21,381.72$     

2/13/2018 21815 CITY OF FERNDALE DISPATCH SERVICES AGREEMENT 3,250.00$     

2/13/2018 21816 CITY OF HUNTINGTON WOODS LIBRARY SERVICES AGREEMENT 41,408.94$     

2/13/2018 21817 CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE-GENERAL CITY WATER USAGE 6,613.19$     

2/13/2018 21818 COMMUNITY MEDIA NETWORK CC MEETING RECORDING 200.00$     

2/13/2018 21819 CREGGER COMPANY PERMIT 18-0026 REFUND 75.00$     

2/13/2018 21820 DAVEY TREE EXPERT COMPANY TREE MAINTENANCE SERVICES 1,530.00$     

2/13/2018 21821 DEBORAH GREEN TRANSCRIPTION SERVICES 37.50$     

2/13/2018 21822 DETROIT EDISON COMPANY STREETLIGHTING JAN 2018 3,102.96$     

2/13/2018 21823 DETROIT SALT COMPANY LLC BULK ROAD SALT PURCHASES 7,858.45$     

2/13/2018 21824 DIVERSIFIED INFRASTRUCTURE SRVS SEWET CLEANING AND CCTV PROJECT 6,255.38$     

2/13/2018 21825 EUGENE LUMBERG COURT PROSECUTION SERVICES 750.00$     

2/13/2018 21826 GREAT AMERICA TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES 433.00$     

2/13/2018 21827 GREAT LAKES WATER AUTHORITY IWC CHARGES-DECEMBER 2018 431.68$     

2/13/2018 21828 HOLIDAY FOOD CENTER MEETING SUPPLIES 25.97$     

2/13/2018 21829 INLAND WATERS SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT 4,530.87$     

2/13/2018 21830 J & J AUTO TRUCK CENTER PD VEHICLE MAINTAINANCE 597.26$     

2/13/2018 21831 JAMES BREUCKMAN PERFORMANCE INSTALLMENT 600.00$     

2/13/2018 21832 JANI-KING OF MICHIGAN, INC JANITORIAL SERVICES 2,161.00$     

2/13/2018 21833 KENNETH APPLEWHITE RECREATION PROGRAM ENTERTAINMENT 200.00$     

2/13/2018 21834 KENNETH BORYCZ INSPECTION SERVICES-JAN 2018 877.50$     

2/13/2018 21835 KEVIN NOWAK PERFORMNACE INSTALLMENT 600.00$     

2/13/2018 21836 LIVING LAB WOODWARD AVE STREETSCAPE PROJECT 5,340.00$     

2/13/2018 21837 MELANIE SEVALD RECREATION PROGRAM 600.00$     

2/13/2018 21838 O'REILY AUTO PARTS POLICE VEHICLE SUPPLIES 13.86$     

2/13/2018 21839 OAKLAND COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE 179.42$     

2/13/2018 21840 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER DELINQUENT TAX ADJUSTMENTS 605.31$     

2/13/2018 21841 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER CLEMIS CONNECTIVITY JUL-SEPT 2017 4,651.00$     

2/13/2018 21842 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER SEWERAGE TREATMENT - JAN 2018 47,998.25$     

2/13/2018 21843 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER GWK DRAIN BONDS 14,548.84$     

2/13/2018 21844 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER GWK BONDS REVOLVING FUND 86,719.14$     

2/13/2018 21845 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER ELECTION CODING AND CANVASS 316.04$     

2/13/2018 21846 OAKLAND SCHOOLS WINTER TAX BILL PRINTING & MAILING 337.84$     

2/13/2018 21847 PAM KAMPF RECREATION PROGRAM 352.00$     

2/13/2018 21848 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES 290.45$     

2/13/2018 21849 RAY KEE INSPECTION SERVICES-JAN 2018 1,350.00$     

2/13/2018 21850 ROBERT RIED PERFORMANCE INSTALLMENT 600.00$     

2/13/2018 21851 SCHEER'S ACE HARDWARE BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 116.14$     

2/13/2018 21852 SCOTT PIETRZAK PERFORMANCE INSTALLMENT 600.00$     

2/13/2018 21853 SHAWNIE STAMPER PERFORMANCE INSTALLMENT 600.00$     

2/13/2018 21854 SOCRRA REFUSE COLLECTION CONTRACT 8,923.00$     

2/13/2018 21855 SOCWA WATER PURCHASES-JAN 2018 14,246.22$     

2/13/2018 21856 STATE OF MICH.-DEPT.OF TREAS. 2017 ANNUAL SALES TAX RETURN 24.68$     

2/13/2018 21857 THE BANK OF NEW YORK 2003 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND PYMT 135,762.50$     

2/13/2018 21858 TIMOTHY SCHULTZ PERFORMANCE INSTALLMENT 600.00$     

2/13/2018 21859 UNIFIRST CORPORATION MAT RENTAL AND JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 869.59$     

2/13/2018 21860 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 169.00$     

2/13/2018 21861 V PIZZO ELECTRIC LLC STEVENSON PARK LIGHTING PROJECT 35,600.00$     

2/13/2018 21862 VICTORIA DICKINSON RECREATION PROGRAM 96.00$     

2/13/2018 21863 WEB MATTERS BY KRISTIE WEBSITE HOSTING 24.95$     

2/13/2018 21864 ZOGICS WELLNESS CENTER SUPPLIES 319.90$     

2/13/2018 21865 BLANKET INSULATION CITY HALL BUILDING MAINTENANCE 4,045.00$     

Total for 2-13-2018 574,067.02$     

CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE CHECK REGISTER

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

February 13, 2018



PG 4

Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

2/26/2018 21866 45TH DISTRICT COURT TICKET EXPENSE-RAMSEY 175.00$     

2/26/2018 21867 ANDERSON, ECKSTEIN & WESTRICK ENGINEERING SERVICES 17,090.10$     

2/26/2018 21868 BLANKET INSULATION CITY HALL BUILDING MAINTENANCE 4,045.00$     

2/26/2018 21869 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN HEALTH BENEFITS 10,069.09$     

2/26/2018 21870 CITY OF FERNDALE FIRE SERVICES AGREEMENT 21,381.72$     

2/26/2018 21871 CITY OF FERNDALE EMERGENCY DISPATCH SERVICES 3,250.00$     

2/26/2018 21872 DETROIT SALT COMPANY LLC BULK ROAD SALT PURCHASES 4,596.63$     

2/26/2018 21873 GIFFELS WEBSTER OAKLAND/SYLVAN CROSSING DESIGN 2,500.00$     

2/26/2018 21874 KEVIN NOWAK UNIFORM PURCHASE REIMBURSEMENT 114.17$     

2/26/2018 21875 MARK ANTHONY NORWICH & HANOVER RECONSTRUCTION 75,634.44$     

2/26/2018 21876 MUTUAL OF OMAHA ANNUAL DISABILITY INSURANCE BENEFIT 848.16$     

2/26/2018 21877 NUNEZ DESIGN GAINSBORO PARK CONSTRUCTION 3,275.00$     

2/26/2018 21878 NYE UNIFORM UNIFORM PURCHASES-KOLEZAR 183.50$     

2/26/2018 21879 O'REILY AUTO PARTS POLICE VEHICLE SUPPLIES 15.85$     

2/26/2018 21880 PAMELA MICHAEL COOPERATIVE TREE PROGRAM REFUND 125.00$     

2/26/2018 21881 PATRICK THOMPSON DESIGNS, INC COMMUNITY CENTER DESIGN SERVICES 4,200.00$     

2/26/2018 21882 PLANTE & MORAN PLLC ACCOUNTING SERVICES 5,403.00$     

2/26/2018 21883 RAY KEE BUILDING OFFICIAL SERVICES 1,350.00$     

2/26/2018 21884 SAFEBUILT CODE ENFORCEMENT SERVICES 110.00$     

2/26/2018 21885 SOCRRA REFUSE COLLECTION CONTRACT 7,978.46$     

2/26/2018 21886 TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES COPIER LEASE SERVICES 992.38$     

2/26/2018 21887 UNIFIRST CORPORATION MAT RENTAL AND JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 287.63$     

2/26/2018 21888 WELCOMING AMERICA ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP DUES 200.00$     

Total for 2-26-2018 163,825.13$     

CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE CHECK REGISTER

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

February 26, 2018



PG 5

Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

2/9/2018 1093 5TH 3RD RECREATION DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 220.55$     

2/9/2018 1094 5TH 3RD RECRETION, MEETING, PROGRAM SUPPLIES 8,516.96$     

2/9/2018 1095 ADOBE SYSTEMS INC SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 68.88$     

2/9/2018 1096 AMAZON.COM POLICE DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 99.25$     

2/9/2018 1097 AT&T MOBILITY WIRELESS SERVICES 48.62$     

2/9/2018 1098 BILL SNETHKAMP DODGE POLICE VEHICLE REPAIRS 345.32$     

2/9/2018 1099 COMCAST TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES 426.35$     

2/9/2018 1100 CONSUMERS ENERGY UTILITIES SERVICES 889.29$     

2/9/2018 1101 DTE ENERGY UTILITIES SERVICES 3,573.40$     

2/9/2018 1102 ERADICO SERVICES INC EXTERMINATION SERVICES 102.00$     

2/9/2018 1103 ID CREATOR POLICE DEPARTMENT ID BADGES 12.49$     

2/9/2018 1104 INTERMEDIA.NET INC. TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES 100.26$     

2/9/2018 1105 MSFT SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 105.99$     

2/9/2018 1106 POSTMASTER POSTAGE REPLENISHMENT 150.00$     

2/9/2018 1107 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES 678.20$     

2/9/2018 1108 STAMPS.COM MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGES 15.99$     

2/9/2018 1109 WORDPRESS WEBSITE HOSTING & DESIGN SERVICES 375.63$     

2/9/2018 1110 WOW! BUSINESS TELECOMMUICATION SERVICES 282.60$     

2/9/2018 1111 XFER COMMUNICATIONS BACKUP AND RECOVERY SERVICES 1,073.00$     

2/12/2018 1112 MUNICIPAL EMP.RETIREMENT SYST. REITREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS JAN 2018 22,620.36$     

2/20/2018 1064 ADOBE SYSTEMS INC SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 68.88$     

2/20/2018 1065 AMAZON.COM POLICE DEPT SUPPLIES 134.57$     

2/20/2018 1066 APPLIED CONCEPTS, INC. RADAR REPAIRS AND SUPPLIES 290.00$     

2/20/2018 1067 AT&T MOBILITY WIRELESS SERVICES 48.62$     

2/20/2018 1068 BOUNDRY POLICE DEPARTMENT SUPPLIES 98.00$     

2/20/2018 1069 COMCAST TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES 443.51$     

2/20/2018 1070 CONSUMERS ENERGY UTILITIES SERVICES 415.82$     

2/20/2018 1071 CVS PHARMACY DPW SUPPLIES 9.09$     

2/20/2018 1072 DTE ENERGY UTILITIES SERVICES 690.06$     

2/20/2018 1073 ERADICO SERVICES INC EXTERMINATION SERVICES 102.00$     

2/20/2018 1074 EZ VANE INC POLICE RANGE SUPPLIES 230.00$     

2/20/2018 1075 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 74.99$     

2/20/2018 1076 HP OFFICE SUPPLIES OFFICE SUPPLIES 408.96$     

2/20/2018 1077 INTERMEDIA.NET INC. TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES 107.15$     

2/20/2018 1078 MARATHON OIL DPW SUPPLIES 4.17$     

2/20/2018 1079 MICH.ASSOC.OF CHIEFS OF POLICE MEMBERSHIP DUES - NOWAK 115.00$     

2/20/2018 1080 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE MEMBERSHIP DUES - BREUCKMAN 130.00$     

2/20/2018 1081 POSTMASTER POSTAGE REPLENISHMENT 200.00$     

2/20/2018 1082 POTBELLYS SANDWICH SHOP MEETING SUPPLIES 117.82$     

2/20/2018 1083 QUILL CORPORATION OFFICE SUPPLIES 548.70$     

2/20/2018 1084 ROYAL OAK FORD POLICE VEHICLE REPAIRS 45.25$     

2/20/2018 1085 SCHEER'S ACE HARDWARE BATTERIES SUPPLIES 7.19$     

2/20/2018 1086 SITE ONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY SNOW REMOVAL SUPPLIES 68.61$     

2/20/2018 1087 STAMPS.COM MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGES 15.99$     

2/20/2018 1088 SURVEY MONKEY ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP DUES 360.00$     

2/20/2018 1089 WOW! BUSINESS TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES 282.60$     

2/20/2018 1090 XFER COMMUNICATIONS BACKUP AND RECOVERY SERVICES 1,081.00$     

2/20/2018 1091 5TH 3RD RECREATION, MEETING & EVENT SUPPLIES 13,545.83$     

2/20/2018 1092 5TH 3RD RECREATION PROGRAM SUPPLIES 442.72$     

Total Electronic Payments 59,791.67$     

ELECTRONIC TRANSFERS

CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE CHECK REGISTER

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE



Item 10c





City of Pleasant Ridge 
Amy M. Drealan, City Clerk 

From: Amy M. Drealan, City Clerk 

To: Mayor and City Commission 

Date: March 7, 2018 

Re: Delinquent Utility Accounts 

Attached is a list of properties that have become delinquent of their utility bill.  The Pleasant Ridge City 

Code states that charges for water service and sewage disposal constitute a lien on the premises where 

service is provided.   

Each year in March, unpaid utility bills are certified to the City Commission.  Once the City Commission 

approves the Special Assessments, the water clerk will mail a notification to each property regarding the 

potential lien.  Property owners then have until May 1st to pay the full past due amounts.  

Upon approval, I will include a special assessment of any outstanding balance for these properties on the 

2018 summer tax rolls.   

Please feel free to contact me should you wish to discuss any matter further.  

Item 10d



Account Number Parcel Number Delinquent Amount

AMHE‐000036‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐105‐015 766.79$  

AMHE‐000052‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐132‐007 1,028.02$  

AMHE‐000064‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐132‐012 393.24$  

AMHE‐000067‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐130‐039 600.40$  

AMHE‐000070‐0000‐02 60‐25‐27‐132‐014 975.43$  

CAMB‐000003‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐154‐010 464.27$  

CAMB‐000046‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐278‐020 1,001.02$  

CAMB‐000111‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐254‐011 1,099.00$  

CAMB‐000135‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐254‐003 285.83$  

CAMB‐000153‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐182‐004 841.52$  

DEVO‐000012‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐103‐008 375.61$  

DEVO‐000042‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐129‐003 1,092.83$  

DEVO‐000056‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐129‐009 425.87$  

DEVO‐000067‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐128‐034 726.13$  

ELM ‐000021‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐276‐006 1,203.96$  

FAIR‐000041‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐177‐029 1,125.38$  

FAIR‐000056‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐180‐006 921.63$  

HANO‐000029‐0000‐02 60‐25‐28‐253‐013 151.10$  

HANO‐000039‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐253‐008 657.12$  

KENB‐000017‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐203‐011 2,053.69$  

KENS‐000025‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐101‐044 540.86$  

KENS‐000031‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐101‐047 112.81$  

KENS‐000036‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐102‐023 143.26$  

KENS‐000047‐0000‐02 60‐25‐27‐101‐055 134.62$  

KENS‐000050‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐102‐030 236.66$  

KENS‐000063‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐126‐024 322.44$  

KENS‐000104‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐128‐019 1,055.45$  

MAPL‐000014‐0000‐16 60‐25‐28‐180‐054 162.66$  

MAPL‐000057‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐181‐003 580.32$  

MAYW‐000042‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐176‐010 940.87$  

MAYW‐000044‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐176‐011 370.53$  

MAYW‐000048‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐176‐013 1,088.72$  

MILL‐000021‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐227‐004 971.87$  

MILL‐000023‐0000‐02 60‐25‐28‐227‐003 215.05$  

OAKD‐000042‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐181‐034 384.82$  

OAKD‐000048‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐181‐037 144.50$  

OAKD‐000090‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐181‐058 351.19$  

OAKL‐000036‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐276‐014 122.81$  

OXFO‐000018‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐277‐034 116.72$  

RIDG‐000036‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐252‐049 612.59$  

RIDG‐000054‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐254‐035 542.43$  

SYLV‐000006‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐156‐004 149.26$  

SYLV‐000060‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐178‐005 695.05$  

WDHT‐000011‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐157‐014 818.50$  

WDHT‐000020‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐181‐013 740.03$  

WDHT‐000028‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐181‐017 1,021.29$  

WDHT‐000050‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐181‐028 1,183.89$  

WDHT‐000070‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐181‐037 581.13$  

WDHT‐000073‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐180‐023 568.85$  

WDSD‐000007‐0000‐01 60‐25‐28‐202‐019 968.66$  

WELL‐000074‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐130‐016 651.90$  

WELL‐000085‐0000‐01 60‐25‐27‐129‐042 198.55$  

32,917.13$  

2018 Delinquent Utility Account Information

2018.03.07



City of Pleasant Ridge 

From: Carolyn Lorenz, Finance 

To: Pleasant Ridge City Commission 

Date: March 1, 2018 

Re: 2017-18 Budget Amendment A-2018-001 

Overview 
The following budget amendments adjust property tax and municipal fine revenue estimates; increases 

contribution revenue; and accounts for increased wage, contractual service, and capital project 

expenditures. 

Background 

Budget Amendment Group 1 – General Fund 

We have adjusted our property tax administrative fee and municipal fine budgets to be more in line with 

actual and historical revenue activity in these accounts.   

Miscellaneous expenses have been increased to cover the commission approved payroll expenditures. 

The audit budget has been increased for actuarial services that were needed to comply with a new 

accounting pronouncement (GASB 67/68) pertaining to post-retirement benefits.  Also in the audit contract 

line item were unanticipated expenditures related to a new audit requirement to have a performance audit 

on our street funds (PA 298).  These expenditures have since been reimbursed by the State.  The 

amendment to the current budgeted amounts is as follows: 

Increase (Decrease) 

101-000-447.000   Property Taxes – Admin Fees (Revenue) $6,500 

101-000-656.000   Municipal Fines (Revenue) $11,500 

101-101-955.000   Miscellaneous Expenses $9,000 

101-253-801.000   Audit Contract $5,200 

Budget Amendment Group 2 – Infrastructure Improvements Fund 

We have increased the revenue and expenditure budgets in the Infrastructure Fund to account for the 

Stevenson Park Lighting project as well as the community center solar project expenditures.  The 

amendment to the current budgeted amounts is as follows: 

Increase (Decrease) 

218-000-675.000   Contributions and Donations (Revenue) $36,000 

218-910-970.750   Capital Outlay – Recreation $40,000 

Item 10e



Budget Amendment Group 3 – Library Fund 

We have adjusted the Library service budget by an inflationary factor.  The amendment to the current 

budgeted amounts is as follows: 

Increase (Decrease) 

271-299-800.000   Library Services Contract $1,000 

Budget Amendment Group 4 – Capital Outlay  

This amendment adjusts capital outlay in the Segregated Capital Asset Fund and the Historical Fund for 

expenditure carryover’s related to the Gainsboro Project.   

The DDA Fund’s capital outlay budget has also been increased for those increased expenditures to repair 

the sidewalks and the brick pavers within the district. The amendment to the current budgeted amounts is 

as follows: 

Increase (Decrease) 

259-910-970.750   Capital Outlay $80,000 

260-730-970.000   Capital Outlay $20,000 

297-803-970.000   Capital Outlay $13,650 

Budget Amendment Group 5 – Debt Service Fund 

This amendment is to increase our contractual service budget to cover those costs of our municipal 

finance advisors related to the filing of the City’s bond continuing disclosure statements.  The amendment 

to the current budgeted amounts is as follows: 

Increase (Decrease) 

301-905-809.000 Contractual Services $1,500 

Budget Amendment Group 6 – Capital Improvement Fund 

This amendment increases our contributions and donations budget for additional grants and settlements 

that have been received.  It also amends the expenditure line item to account for Gainsboro project 

carryover’s.   

Increase (Decrease) 

401-000-675.000   Contributions and Donations (Revenue) $18,000 

401-910-970.750   Capital Outlay $32,000 

Requested Action 
City Commission consideration of the above budget amendments. 



City of Pleasant Ridge 
23925 Woodward Avenue 

Pleasant Ridge, Michigan 48069 

Resolution in Support of March For Our Lives 

WHEREAS, the United States leads the world in the number of mass shootings defined as four or more 

people being shot in one incident, not including the shooter; and  

WHEREAS, statistics from the Gun Violence Archives reveal there have been 1,627 mass shootings in 

1,870 days; and 

WHEREAS, perpetrators of mass shootings prey on the most vulnerable of our society making schools their 

targets; and 

WHEREAS, since January 1, 2018 there have been at least 7 shootings in American schools resulting in 

injury or death, and a total of 208 since the Columbine school shooting on April 20, 1999; and 

WHEREAS, since this crisis became evident and debate commenced regarding the role mental illness 

contributes to mass shootings, neither congress nor the state legislature have found the 

political will to reduce access to military grade assault weapons or enact any other effective gun 

control policies; and  

WHEREAS, calls to fortify our schools and arm professional educators do nothing to address the true cause 

of this uniquely American problem; and 

WHEREAS, the Parkland survivors have decided that enough is enough and have organized a ‘March for 

Our Lives’ to take place Saturday, March 24, 2018; and  

WHEREAS, students from around the country (and the world) will unite on March 24th, to show their resolve 

and demand action from legislators for comprehensive gun control; and  

WHEREAS, we believe all children deserve safe and healthy environments to pursue their education and 

that it is our responsibility to provide them with this most basic necessity; and.  

WHEREAS, we believe children in Pleasant Ridge are no less at risk than anywhere else in the country. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Pleasant Ridge stands with the students and children of 

our community by demanding that our state and federal elected officials enact sensible gun control policies; 

and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Pleasant Ridge invites all residents to join in showing support on 

March 24, 2018 as we all come together for our children and their future and join them in the March of Our 

Lives. 

In Witness Whereof, I Amy M. Drealan, Clerk of the City of Pleasant Ridge, 

do hereby set my hand and affix the official Seal of the City on this 13th day of 

March 2018, affirming the vote of the Pleasant Ridge City Commission. 

_____________________________ 
Amy M. Drealan, City Clerk 

Item 10f



City of Pleasant Ridge 
James Breuckman, City Manager 

From: Jim Breuckman, City Manager 

To: City Commission 

Date: March 13, 2018 

Re: City Code Amendment Introductions – Police Ordinances 

Overview 
Attached are four ordinances to amend the City Code for various purposes. The ordinances were requested 

by the Police based on their experience as they work to address the day-to-day issues in the City.  A public 

hearing was established at the February meeting.  Notices have been posted and publication has been 

completed as required. 

Background 
The ordinances for introduction are: 

1. Section 14-136 through 143: False Alarms. This ordinance establishes a process by which the

police can address two issues that we have dealt with in the past:

a. Audible alarms disturbing the peace. The ordinance requires that the owner of any alarm

with an audible alert sound register their contact information with the police so that we can

quickly contact them if an alarm is sounding. We have had instances where a business

alarm was going off in the middle of the night, disturbing neighbors.

b. Response to false alarm calls. There have been instances where there are recurring false

alarms from the same house or business in the City. Responding to false alarms is a drain

on police resources. It is reasonable to expect that there will be some false alarms that are

triggered, but the issue is that sometimes false alarms recur at a specific house or

business and the owner or resident does not remedy the situation. This ordinance will give

the police recourse to fine the owner if continuous false alarms are triggered and the owner

or resident does not remedy the situation.

There are provisions in the ordinance to account for false alarms triggered by

circumstances outside of the control of the property owner or resident. These instances will

not be counted as a false alarm.

2. Section 34-52: Unlicensed Vehicles. An issue which is not frequent, but does recur periodically is

the accumulation of unlicensed or inoperable vehicles on private property. These are often stored

Item 11a-g



Police Ordinance Introductions 

February 8, 2018 - Page 2 of 2 

in backyards, and it is something that can create blight in a city like ours where we have small lots 

and small backyards.  

We have dealt with these situations in the past using our general nuisance standards, but we will 

be better served by having a specific ordinance that prohibits the storage of unlicensed or 

inoperable vehicles. 

Note that the unlicensed/inoperable vehicle provision does not apply to a vehicle that is stored in a 

garage. For example, a resident may have a project car they are restoring, or an extra car that they 

are storing for whatever purpose. If these cars are located in a garage it does not create the same 

blighting impact as such vehicles stored outdoors. 

3. Section 70-21: Michigan Vehicle Code Violations and Penalties. This amendment would increase

the maximum fine in subsection c from $700 to $1,000. This is to keep our local ordinance

consistent with the Michigan Vehicle Code section 257.625, which was recently amended.

4. Section 70-86 through 88: Cost Recovery for Prosecution Expense. This ordinance adds cost

recovery provisions for legal services incurred in the prosecution of traffic offenses. This will cover

costs for OWI (operating while intoxicated) cases, but will not be levied against civil infractions such

as speeding, failure to stop, impeding traffic, etc. This reimbursement of legal costs for OWI is

standard practice for OWI prosecutions in Pleasant Ridge and across the state, so adding this

section will not represent a substantive policy change.

This amendment also includes small revisions in Section 70-86 and 70-87 to change references to

the City finance officer or office, given that we have outsourced our finance function and no longer

have a finance officer.

Requested Action 
After the public hearing, City Commission adoption of the proposed ordinances. 



City of Pleasant Ridge 

Ordinance No. ___ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

CHAPTER 14 – BUILDING AND BUILDING REGULATIONS.  

THE CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Amendment. 

The Code of Ordinances will be amended by adding the following Code Chapter 14, Article VII 

- False Alarms:

Article VII - FALSE ALARMS 

Sec. 14-136. Definitions. 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, 

shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context 

clearly indicates a different meaning: 

Alarm system means any mechanical or electrical device which, when 

activated, emits a sound or transmits a signal or message to which the police or 

fire department may be summoned, directly or indirectly, to respond. An alarm 

system is designed for use for one or any combination of the following: 

(a) The detection of an unlawful entry or attempted unlawful entry

into a building, structure or facility;

(b) The alerting of others of the commission of an unlawful act within

a building, structure or facility; and/or

(c) The detection of fire, smoke or heat within a building, structure or

facility.

Alarm user means any owner or occupant who has physical control over 

the premises where an alarm system is installed within the city, except for alarm 

systems on motor vehicles. However, if an alarm system on a motor vehicle is 

connected to an alarm system at a premises, the person using such system is an 

alarm user. Excluded from this definition and coverage of this section are persons 

who use self-contained alarm systems, i.e., a system which signals or alerts other 

authorized persons who are on the premises of an attempted unauthorized 

intrusion, holdup attempt or fire condition. However, if such a system employs an 

audible signal emitting sounds, flashing light or beacon designed to signal persons 

outside the premises; such system shall be within the definition of an alarm system 

and shall be subject to this section. 

Item 11a-b



False alarm means activation of an alarm system through mistake, 

mechanical failure, malfunction, improper installation, lack of prudent 

maintenance or through the negligence of the occupant of the residence and/or 

building in which the alarm system is located, including their employees or agents. 

The term “false alarm” also means any activation of an alarm system which 

indicates a crime or situation other than that which it was designated to indicate, 

or in the case of a fire alarm, any alarm condition not resulting from a fire or 

potential fire hazard. 

Sec. 14-137. Licensing required. 

No person shall engage in the business of providing for the installation, 

operation and/or maintenance of a burglar and/or fire alarm system and/or a 

combined alarm monitoring-sales facility unless properly licensed pursuant to 

Public Act No. 330 of 1968 (MCL 338.1051 et seq.). 

Sec. 14-138. Audible or visual alarms. 

(a) Signal disturbing the peace. No person shall maintain an alarm system

which, when activated, causes an audible and/or visible signal which can

be heard or seen outside the premises and which is disturbing to the peace

and quiet of the surrounding area, unless that person has first provided the

police department with the following: their name, telephone number,

address of the alarmed premises, and the name and telephone number of

one other person who, having access to the alarmed premises, can be

contacted at any time and can respond within 30 minutes to deactivate the

audible and/or visible signal.

(b) Duration of external signal. No person shall use, install, or direct to be

installed, any audible alarm system which emits a sound alarm for a period

longer than 15 minutes from the time of the initial sounding of the device.

Sec. 14-139. False alarm fees. 

Notwithstanding any penalties provided for upon conviction for any 

violation of this chapter, and notwithstanding the fact that prosecution for 

violation of this chapter has or has not commenced, any person operating an 

alarm system which signals more than three false alarms as defined in section 

14-1 within one calendar year shall pay to the city a false alarm fee in order to

defray a portion of the cost of response to false alarms as follows:

(a) Fourth false alarm ..........................................$100.00 

(b) Fifth false alarm .............................................$200.00 

(c) Sixth false alarm and above ...........................$300.00 

(d) All additional false alarm in the same calendar year $500.00



Sec. 14-140. Exceptions to alarm fees. 

Alarm conditions existing under the following circumstances shall not 

constitute a false alarm and no fee shall be assessed. 

(a) If measures to correct alarm system malfunctions have been instituted

within a 72-hour period with notification to police department, provided

that the alarm user presents, within 30 days of the date of alarm response,

documentation of repair service having been performed by the alarm

company to remedy a malfunction;

(b) Alarm conditions being activated by a person working on the alarm system

with prior notification to the police department; and

(c) Alarms which can be substantiated as being activated by disruption or

disturbance of telephone company facilities, or motor vehicle/utility

accidents or by storm conditions.

Sec. 14-141. Waiver request. 

(a) Within 30 days of the date of an alarm violation, an alarm user wishing

waiver of a false alarm and the associated fee as a result of a condition

described in section 14-140, may do so by a written waiver request.

(b) The waiver request, directed to the police department, shall contain

documentation of the applicable condition as described in section 14-140

(c) The police or fire chief, or a designated representative shall make a

determination on the waiver request and shall notify the alarm user of the

decision in writing.

(d) In the event that the alarm user is not satisfied with the decision rendered by

the police or fire chief or a designated representative, the alarm user, within

ten days of the date of the determination of the police or fire chief, may file

with the city manager or designee a written request that the determination be

reconsidered.

(e) The city manager or his designee shall decide whether to uphold or set aside

in whole or in part, the decision reached by the police or fire chief. The

alarm user shall be notified of that decision in writing. If the alarm user

feels it necessary to appeal the decision he may have the opportunity to

personally be present and be heard on the matter by the city manager or his

designee.

Sec. 14-142. Defective alarms. 

An alarm system signaling more than five false alarms within a calendar 

year is presumed to be defective. Upon written notice, the owner or occupant of 



the building or residence shall have the alarm system inspected by a licensed 

alarm system contractor within ten days and shall forward to the police department 

said contractor’s report of the probable cause of the false alarms and the measures 

instituted to eliminate same. 

Sec. 14-143. Penalty. 

(a) Notwithstanding any other fees required by any other section of this

chapter, any person who shall violate the provisions of this chapter shall be

responsible for a municipal civil infraction, subject to the following

penalties:

(1) Fines. The following civil fines shall apply in the event of a

determination of responsibility for a municipal civil infraction,

unless a different fine is specified in connection with a particular

ordinance:

(i) First offense. The civil fine for a first offense violation shall

be in an amount of $75.00, plus costs and other sanctions,

for each offense.

(ii) Repeat offense. The civil fine for any offense which is a

repeat offense shall be in an amount of $150.00, plus

costs and other sanctions for each offense.

(2) Enforcement. In addition to ordering the defendant determined to be

responsible for a municipal civil infraction to pay a civil fine, costs,

damages and expenses, the judge or magistrate shall be authorized to

issue any judgment, writ or order necessary to enforce, or enjoin

violation of this chapter.

(3) Continuing offense. Each act of violation, and on each day upon

which any such violation shall occur, shall constitute a separate

offense.

(4) Remedies not exclusive. In addition to any remedies provided for by

this chapter, any equitable or other remedies available may be

sought.

(b) The judge or magistrate shall be authorized to impose costs, damages and

expenses as provided by law.

Section 2. Severability.

Should any provision or part of this Article be declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to 

be invalid or unenforceable, the same shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the balance 

of this Article, which shall remain in full force and effect. 



Section 3. Repealer. 

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed 

only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 

Section 4. Savings clause. 

Nothing in this Article shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding pending in any court or 

any rights acquired or any liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or 

existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 3 of this Ordinance; nor 

shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired, or affected by this 

Ordinance. 

Section 4. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective fifteen days after enactment and upon publication as 

provided by law. 

Section 5. Adoption. 

This Ordinance is hereby declared to have been adopted by the City Commission of the City of 

Pleasant Ridge at a meeting duly called and held on the ____ day of _______, 2018, and ordered 

to be given publication in the manner prescribed by law. 

Introduced: Tuesday, February 13, 2018 

Public Hearing: Tuesday, March 13, 2018 

Adopted: 

Published: 

Effective: 



City of Pleasant Ridge 

Ordinance No. ___ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

CHAPTER 34, ARTICLE III – NUISANCES.  

THE CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Amendment. 

The Code of Ordinances, Chapter 34, Article III, Section 34-52 will be amended by adding 

a new section (13) to read as follows: 

(13) The storage or parking upon private property of any unlicensed or inoperative

vehicle; provided, however, that this prohibition shall not apply to inoperable

vehicles located at a service station or collision facility while awaiting repairs, nor

to a vehicle within an enclosed building. For the purpose of this section, the term

"vehicle" means every device in, upon, or by which any person or property is or

may be transported or drawn upon a highway or street, excepting devices

exclusively moved by human power or used exclusively upon stationary rails or

tracks. This section shall apply when:

a. The vehicle so stored or parked is not validly licensed for operation upon

the highways in the state for a period in excess of five calendar days; or 

b. The vehicle so stored or parked, whether currently validly licensed or not,

is inoperable for any reason for a period in excess of five calendar days. 

Section 2. Severability. 

Should any provision or part of this Article be declared by any court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the same shall not affect the validity or enforceability 

of the balance of this Article, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 3. Repealer. 

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 

repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 

Section 4. Savings clause. 

Nothing in this Article shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding pending in any 

court or any rights acquired or any liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or 

existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 3 of this Ordinance; nor 

shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired, or affected by this 

Ordinance. 

Item 11c-d



Section 4. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective fifteen days after enactment and upon publication 

as provided by law. 

Section 5. Adoption. 

This Ordinance is hereby declared to have been adopted by the City Commission of the 

City of Pleasant Ridge at a meeting duly called and held on the ____ day of _______, 2018, and 

ordered to be given publication in the manner prescribed by law. 

Introduced: Tuesday, February 13, 2018 

Public Hearing: Tuesday, March 13, 2018 

Adopted: 

Published: 

Effective: 



City of Pleasant Ridge 

Ordinance No. ___ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

CHAPTER 70 – TRAFFIC.  

THE CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Amendment. 

The Code of Ordinances will be amended by modifying the following Code sections of 

Chapter 70: 

Sec. 70-21. - Violations and penalties. 

The penalties provided by the Michigan Vehicle Code are adopted by reference. The city may 

not enforce any provision of the Michigan Vehicle Code for which the maximum period of 

imprisonment is greater than 93 days; provided, however that a violation of section 625(1)(c) of 

the Michigan Vehicle Code (MCL 257.625(1)(c)) is punishable by one or more of the following:  

(1) Community service of not more than 360 hours.

(2) Imprisonment for not more than 180 days.

(3) A fine of not less than $200.00 or more than $1000.00.

Section 2. Severability. 

Should any provision or part of this Article be declared by any court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the same shall not affect the validity or enforceability 

of the balance of this Article, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 3. Repealer. 

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 

repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 

Section 4. Savings clause. 

Nothing in this Article shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding pending in any 

court or any rights acquired or any liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or 

existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 3 of this Ordinance; nor 

shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired, or affected by this 

Ordinance. 

Section 4. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective fifteen days after enactment and upon publication 

as provided by law. 

Item 11e-f



Section 5. Adoption. 

This Ordinance is hereby declared to have been adopted by the City Commission of the 

City of Pleasant Ridge at a meeting duly called and held on the ____ day of _______, 2018, and 

ordered to be given publication in the manner prescribed by law. 

Introduced: Tuesday, February 13, 2018 

Public Hearing:  Tuesday, March 13, 2018 

Adopted: 

Published: 

Effective: 



City of Pleasant Ridge 

Ordinance No. ___ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

CHAPTER 70 – TRAFFIC.  

THE CITY OF PLEASANT RIDGE ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Amendment. 

The Code of Ordinances will be amended by modifying the following Code sections of 

Chapter 70: 

Sec. 70-86. - Notice. 

Upon receiving notice of a conviction, a plea of guilty, or a plea of nolo 

contendere for violation of MCL 257.625(1), (3), (4), (5), (6) or (7) or MCL 

257.625a—257.625g, 257.625m of the Michigan Vehicle Code, the city manager 

or designee shall submit a bill for the expense of the emergency response, by first 

class mail or personal service, to the person liable as enumerated in this article. 

Payment shall be required within 30 days from date of service.  

Sec. 70-87. - Failure to pay. 

Failure to pay the bill submitted by the city' within 30 days of service shall 

render such matter in default. The city may then commence suit against the person 

liable to recover the expense of the emergency response and costs incurred in the 

collection process.  

Sec. 70-88- Reimbursement of expenses for emergency response and prosecution. 

Revise subsection (b) to add a new subsection (3) as follows: 

(b) The expenses for which reimbursement may be ordered include all of

the following: 

(1) The salaries or wages, including overtime pay, loss of equipment, of

law enforcement personnel for time spent responding to the incident from which 

the conviction arose, arresting the person convicted, processing the person after the 

arrest, preparing reports to the incident, investigating the incident, and collecting 

and analyzing evidence, including, but not limited to, determining bodily alcohol 

content and determining in the presence of and identifying controlled substances in 

the blood, breath, or urine; and 

(2) The salaries, wages, or other compensation, including overtime pay, of

fire department and emergency medical service personnel for time spend in 

responding to and providing fire fighting, rescue, and emergency medical services 

in relation to the incident from which the conviction arose. 

Item 11g-h



(3) Costs billed or to be billed to the City for legal services associated

with the issuance of a complaint and warrant, investigation, response to discovery, 

subpoenaing of witnesses, preparation for trial, preparation of pleadings, response 

to motions and pleadings, court appearances and court time, telephone calls and 

conferences relating to prosecutions and any other services performed in 

connection with prosecuting the person. 

Section 2. Severability. 

Should any provision or part of this Article be declared by any court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the same shall not affect the validity or enforceability 

of the balance of this Article, which shall remain in full force and effect. 

Section 3. Repealer. 

All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 

repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 

Section 4. Savings clause. 

Nothing in this Article shall be construed to affect any suit or proceeding pending in any 

court or any rights acquired or any liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or 

existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed as cited in Section 3 of this Ordinance; nor 

shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired, or affected by this 

Ordinance. 

Section 4. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective fifteen days after enactment and upon publication 

as provided by law. 

Section 5. Adoption. 

This Ordinance is hereby declared to have been adopted by the City Commission of the 

City of Pleasant Ridge at a meeting duly called and held on the ____ day of _______, 2018, and 

ordered to be given publication in the manner prescribed by law. 

Introduced: Tuesday, February 13, 2018 

Public Hearing: Tuesday, March 13, 2018 

Adopted: 

Published: 

Effective: 



City of Pleasant Ridge 
James Breuckman, City Manager 

From: Jim Breuckman, City Manager 

To: City Commission 

Date: March 8, 2018 

Re: Ridge, Indiana & Bermuda Construction Bid Award 

Overview 
The City received five bids for the reconstruction of Ridge, Indiana and Bermuda. James P Contracting was 

the low bidder at $628,572. 14 for the base bid, however their bid was non-responsive to the bid 

specifications because they submitted a bid bond in lieu of the required certified check. For that reason, 

AEW is recommending that the City accept the second low bid by Pro-Line Asphalt in the amount of 

$648,178.98. 

The total bid with alternates is $703,702.98 

Background 
Ridge, Indiana and Bermuda are the final streets to be reconstructed as part of the City’s ongoing 

infrastructure improvement project. Once these streets are reconstructed, all of Pleasant Ridge’s 

streets will have been reconstructed since the project started in 1995. 

The lowest responsive bid for the project was submitted by Pro-Line Asphalt. The total bid including all 

alternates came in at $703,702.98. The bid is only slightly higher than the City Engineer’s cost 

estimate of $695,228.70 for the project. The City Engineer has experience working with this 

contractor and is recommending that the City Commission accept their bid. 

Alternate Bid Options 
The City Commission must decide if it wishes to accept any or all of the alternates that were included 

in the bid. The alternates are to narrow the intersections of Oakland Park, Elm Park, and Poplar Park 

at Ridge. Currently, the streets are 36 feet wide at Ridge. The alternates would narrow this to 28 feet, 

which is more in keeping with the 27-foot width of a regular, non-boulevard street. Narrowing the 

intersections will still allow for all vehicle movements, while shortening the crossing for pedestrians, 

increasing pedestrian safety and visibility. 

The City conducted a test of the narrowed intersection at Oakland Park and Ridge last fall. That test 

was designed with a 24-foot wide opening. We did receive a few comments that it was too narrow and 

difficult for drivers, so the opening was widened to 28 feet for the plans that were put out to bid.  

Narrowing the intersection to 28 feet will reduce the width of the intersection, and the time it takes for 

a pedestrian to cross it, by 23%. 

Item 12



Ridge, Indiana, and Bermuda Construction Bid Award 

March 8, 2018 - Page 2 of 2 

Please refer to the attached page from the plan set, and representative aerial showing how the 

intersections would be narrowed. 

The City Commission must decide if it wishes to accept the alternate bid options A, B, and C. Alternate 

A is for Oakland Park, B is for Elm Park, and C is for Poplar Park. The Commission may accept one, 

two, or all three alternates. 

Project Schedule 
It is as yet unknown when the project will start. Work on Ridge Road may not begin before school lets out in 

June. Once the project is awarded we will work with the contractor to determine what schedule works best 

for them. The most likely options would be for the contractor either start on Indiana and Bermuda in the 

spring and then move to Ridge in late June after school lets out, or to wait until late June and work on all 

three streets simultaneously. 

As per our standard practice, we will hold pre-construction meetings for residents before the projects 

commences to discuss details of the project schedule and what disruptions residents should expect. 

Requested Action 
City Commission action to award the base bid for the construction contract to Pro-Line Asphalt for the total 

amount of $648,178.98, and further to decide if the City Commission would like to award Alternate Bid 

Option A in the amount of $18,485.00, Alternate Bid Option B in the amount of $18,432.00, and Alternate 

Bid Option C in the amount of $18,607.00. 







Prepared by: Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc.

DATE: 51301 Schoenherr Road

TIME: Shelby Township, MI  48315

VENDOR RANKING

RANK VENDOR NAME

1 James P Contracting, Inc

2 Pro-Line Asphalt 

3 Florence Cement Company

4 Hutch Paving *

5 Merlo Construction *368,509.95$  

Grand Total 

675,316.04$  

703,702.98$  

803,711.03$  

858,701.28$  

929,686.48$  112,522.43$  

Indiana Avenue

384,605.10$  

106,634.00$  

82,904.48$  

88,544.43$  

97,319.38$  

283,889.88$  

286,829.15$  

345,317.50$  

358,029.78$  

Bermuda Avenue

2/27/18

2:00 PM

Ridge Road and Cambridge 

Boulevard

261,777.78$  

272,805.40$  

312,572.50$  

324,424.00$  

TABULATION OF BIDS

2018 HMA Resurfacing Project

AEW PROJECT NO. 0175-0105, 0175-0106, AND 0175-0107

City of Pleasant Ridge

21,410.50$  865,637.48$  

Alt Bid Option A

15,673.35$  

18,485.00$  

16,227.75$  

23,107.75$  

Base Bid Total 

628,572.14$  

648,178.98$  

755,209.38$  

789,087.78$  

21,249.00$  21,389.50$  

Alt  Bid Option C

15,649.55$  

18,607.00$  

16,209.50$  

23,110.75$  

Alt  Bid Option B

15,421.00$  

18,432.00$  

16,064.40$  

23,395.00$  

Page 1 of 8



Item 

No. Description

Estimated 

Quantity Units Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

Ridge Road and Cambridge Boulevard

1. _Audio Visual Record of the 

Construction Influence Area 

1 LS 735.00 735.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 975.00 975.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

2. _Mobilization, 3% Max. 1 LS 5,675.00 5,675.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 9,150.00 9,150.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 7,000.00 7,000.00

3. Curb and Gutter, Rem 520 Ft 7.80 4,056.00 16.00 8,320.00 11.90 6,188.00 12.00 6,240.00 18.00 9,360.00

4. Sidewalk, Rem 378 Syd 8.60 3,250.80 14.00 5,292.00 11.35 4,290.30 9.00 3,402.00 9.00 3,402.00

5. Excavation, Earth 5 Cyd 64.50 322.50 100.00 500.00 39.45 197.25 55.00 275.00 25.00 125.00

6. Subgrade Undercutting, Modified 25 Cyd 52.00 1,300.00 40.00 1,000.00 52.80 1,320.00 45.00 1,125.00 45.00 1,125.00

7. _Erosion Control, Inlet Filter 27 Ea 87.00 2,349.00 85.00 2,295.00 86.20 2,327.40 200.00 5,400.00 140.00 3,780.00

8. Aggregate Base 50 Ton 18.65 932.50 30.00 1,500.00 21.00 1,050.00 22.00 1,100.00 28.00 1,400.00

9. Aggregate Base, Conditioning, Modified 7,575 Syd 1.30 9,847.50 2.00 15,150.00 0.70 5,302.50 0.85 6,438.75 3.75 28,406.25

10. Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 15 Ea 600.00 9,000.00 480.00 7,200.00 905.00 13,575.00 750.00 11,250.00 395.00 5,925.00

11. Dr Structure, Adj, Add Depth 20 Ft 440.00 8,800.00 50.00 1,000.00 202.00 4,040.00 250.00 5,000.00 75.00 1,500.00

12. _Gate Well Cover, Adj, Case 1 8 Ea 600.00 4,800.00 480.00 3,840.00 975.00 7,800.00 250.00 2,000.00 395.00 3,160.00

13. HMA Surface, Rem 7,575 Syd 1.85 14,013.75 2.50 18,937.50 3.03 22,952.25 3.95 29,921.25 9.00 68,175.00

14. HMA, 13A 860 Ton 73.45 63,167.00 75.00 64,500.00 93.85 80,711.00 93.00 79,980.00 95.00 81,700.00

15. HMA, 13A 860 Ton 77.25 66,435.00 80.00 68,800.00 93.50 80,410.00 92.00 79,120.00 95.00 81,700.00

16. _Pavt Repr, Rem, Modified 44 Syd 8.10 356.40 20.00 880.00 22.65 996.60 65.00 2,860.00 26.00 1,144.00

17. Curb, Conc, Det E4 71 Ft 24.50 1,739.50 30.00 2,130.00 29.65 2,105.15 30.00 2,130.00 23.00 1,633.00

18. Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det F2 200 Ft 24.50 4,900.00 23.00 4,600.00 25.15 5,030.00 25.00 5,000.00 26.00 5,200.00

19. Detectable Warning Surface 166 Ft 27.35 4,540.10 35.00 5,810.00 40.00 6,640.00 35.00 5,810.00 38.00 6,308.00

20. Curb Ramp Opening, Conc 330 Ft 24.50 8,085.00 23.00 7,590.00 24.15 7,969.50 26.00 8,580.00 22.00 7,260.00

21. Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 4 inch 467 Sft 6.40 2,988.80 6.00 2,802.00 6.95 3,245.65 6.00 2,802.00 5.00 2,335.00

22. Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 1,807 Sft 4.30 7,770.10 5.00 9,035.00 6.25 11,293.75 5.50 9,938.50 4.25 7,679.75

23. _Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 8 inch 1,054 Sft 7.65 8,063.10 7.00 7,378.00 8.40 8,853.60 7.50 7,905.00 6.00 6,324.00

24. Post, Steel, 3 lb 64 Ft 5.20 332.80 5.00 320.00 4.95 316.80 5.15 329.60 6.75 432.00

25. Sign, Type III, Rem 1 Ea 10.50 10.50 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 25.00 25.00 55.00 55.00

26. Sign, Type IIIB 44 Sft 16.80 739.20 16.00 704.00 16.00 704.00 25.00 1,100.00 15.75 693.00

27. Pavt Mrkg, Ovly Cold Plastic, 6 inch, 

Crosswalk 

736 Ft 3.10 2,281.60 3.00 2,208.00 2.95 2,171.20 3.25 2,392.00 3.00 2,208.00

Merlo Construction 

3000 East 10 Mile 

James P Contracting, Inc Pro-Line Asphalt Florence Cement Company Hutch Paving 

8505 Terra Bella Drive

2018 HMA Resurfacing Project

AEW PROJECT NO. 0175-0105, 0175-0106, AND 0175-0107 Washington, MI  48095 Washington, MI  48095 Shelby Twp., MI 48315 Warren, MI 48091 Northville, MI 48168

TABULATION OF BIDS

67222 Van Dyke 11797 29 Mile Rd 12585 23 Mile Rd

City of Pleasant Ridge

Page 2 of 8



Item 

No. Description

Estimated 

Quantity Units Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

Merlo Construction 

3000 East 10 Mile 

James P Contracting, Inc Pro-Line Asphalt Florence Cement Company Hutch Paving 

8505 Terra Bella Drive

2018 HMA Resurfacing Project

AEW PROJECT NO. 0175-0105, 0175-0106, AND 0175-0107 Washington, MI  48095 Washington, MI  48095 Shelby Twp., MI 48315 Warren, MI 48091 Northville, MI 48168

TABULATION OF BIDS

67222 Van Dyke 11797 29 Mile Rd 12585 23 Mile Rd

City of Pleasant Ridge

28. Pavt Mrkg, Ovly Cold Plastic, 12 inch,

Cross Hatching, Yellow

35 Ft 6.25 218.75 6.00 210.00 5.95 208.25 6.15 215.25 6.00 210.00

29. Pavt Mrkg, Ovly Cold Plastic, 12 inch,

Crosswalk

464 Ft 6.25 2,900.00 6.00 2,784.00 5.95 2,760.80 6.15 2,853.60 6.00 2,784.00

30. Pavt Mrkg, Ovly Cold Plastic, 18 inch,

Stop Bar

188 Ft 9.45 1,776.60 9.00 1,692.00 9.00 1,692.00 10.00 1,880.00 10.00 1,880.00

31. Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 4 inch,

White

3,925 Ft 0.42 1,648.50 0.40 1,570.00 0.40 1,570.00 0.45 1,766.25 0.45 1,766.25

32. Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 4 inch,

Yellow

664 Ft 0.42 278.88 0.50 332.00 0.40 265.60 0.45 298.80 0.45 298.80

33. Barricade, Type III, High Intensity,

Lighted, Furn

40 Ea 57.80 2,312.00 55.00 2,200.00 55.00 2,200.00 28.00 1,120.00 60.00 2,400.00

34. Barricade, Type III, High Intensity,

Lighted, Oper

40 Ea 0.01 0.40 0.01 0.40 0.01 0.40 28.00 1,120.00 0.01 0.40

35. Plastic Drum, High Intensity, Furn 50 Ea 18.90 945.00 18.00 900.00 18.00 900.00 10.00 500.00 20.00 1,000.00

36. Plastic Drum, High Intensity, Oper 50 Ea 0.01 0.50 0.01 0.50 0.01 0.50 10.00 500.00 0.01 0.50

37. Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn 500 Sft 4.20 2,100.00 4.00 2,000.00 4.00 2,000.00 2.50 1,250.00 4.50 2,250.00

38. Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Oper 500 Sft 0.01 5.00 0.01 5.00 0.01 5.00 2.50 1,250.00 0.01 5.00

39. _Pedestrian Type II Barricade, Temp 46 Ea 131.00 6,026.00 125.00 5,750.00 125.00 5,750.00 126.00 5,796.00 130.00 5,980.00

40. _Planter Mix, CIP 7 Cyd 105.00 735.00 60.00 420.00 90.00 630.00 100.00 700.00 90.00 630.00

41. _Hemerocallis Stella d'oro', 2 gal 8 Ea 40.00 320.00 30.00 240.00 28.00 224.00 150.00 1,200.00 40.00 320.00

42. _Perovskia atriplicifolia Lacey Blue, 2 10 Ea 40.00 400.00 30.00 300.00 28.00 280.00 100.00 1,000.00 40.00 400.00

43. _Quercus rubra, 3 inch 1 Ea 800.00 800.00 600.00 600.00 675.00 675.00 250.00 250.00 675.00 675.00

44. Topsoil Surface, Furn, 3 inch 200 Syd 13.00 2,600.00 6.00 1,200.00 6.05 1,210.00 15.00 3,000.00 9.00 1,800.00

45. Water, Sodding/Seeding 10 Unit 80.00 800.00 90.00 900.00 65.00 650.00 250.00 2,500.00 78.00 780.00

46. _Hydraulic Seeding 200 Syd 2.10 420.00 2.00 400.00 6.88 1,376.00 13.00 2,600.00 9.00 1,800.00

47.   _Rubbish Pickup 1 LS 1,000.00 1,000.00 500.00 500.00 550.00 550.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 2,500.00 2,500.00

Total Base Bid for Ridge Road and Cambridge Boulevard 261,777.78 272,805.40 312,572.50 324,424.00 368,509.95 *

Indiana Avenue 

48. _Audio Visual Record of the

Construction Influence Area
1 LS 970.00 970.00 900.00 900.00 875.00 875.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 3,000.00 3,000.00

Page 3 of 8



Item 

No. Description

Estimated 

Quantity Units Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

Merlo Construction 

3000 East 10 Mile 

James P Contracting, Inc Pro-Line Asphalt Florence Cement Company Hutch Paving 

8505 Terra Bella Drive

2018 HMA Resurfacing Project

AEW PROJECT NO. 0175-0105, 0175-0106, AND 0175-0107 Washington, MI  48095 Washington, MI  48095 Shelby Twp., MI 48315 Warren, MI 48091 Northville, MI 48168

TABULATION OF BIDS

67222 Van Dyke 11797 29 Mile Rd 12585 23 Mile Rd

City of Pleasant Ridge

49. _Mobilization, 3% Max. 1 LS 5,675.00 5,675.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 10,100.00 10,100.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00

50. Curb and Gutter, Rem 100 Ft 12.00 1,200.00 18.00 1,800.00 8.95 895.00 12.00 1,200.00 18.00 1,800.00

51. Sidewalk, Rem 352 Syd 8.55 3,009.60 15.00 5,280.00 8.20 2,886.40 9.00 3,168.00 9.00 3,168.00

52. Excavation, Earth 90 Cyd 13.75 1,237.50 60.00 5,400.00 26.90 2,421.00 55.00 4,950.00 25.00 2,250.00

53. _Station Grading 1,785 Ft 11.50 20,527.50 13.00 23,205.00 27.10 48,373.50 14.50 25,882.50 30.00 53,550.00

54. Subgrade Undercutting, Modified 50 Cyd 52.00 2,600.00 40.00 2,000.00 52.75 2,637.50 45.00 2,250.00 45.00 2,250.00

55. _Erosion Control, Inlet Filter 31 Ea 87.00 2,697.00 85.00 2,635.00 90.65 2,810.15 175.00 5,425.00 140.00 4,340.00

56. Aggregate Base, 6 inch 5,000 Syd 6.80 34,000.00 5.30 26,500.00 6.35 31,750.00 7.50 37,500.00 9.25 46,250.00

57. Aggregate Base, 8 inch 340 Syd 9.80 3,332.00 8.50 2,890.00 12.80 4,352.00 12.75 4,335.00 11.50 3,910.00

58. Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 5 Ea 600.00 3,000.00 480.00 2,400.00 1,265.00 6,325.00 750.00 3,750.00 395.00 1,975.00

59. Dr Structure, Adj, Add Depth 16 Ft 440.00 7,040.00 50.00 800.00 202.00 3,232.00 250.00 4,000.00 75.00 1,200.00

60. _Gate Well Cover, Adj, Case 1 3 Ea 600.00 1,800.00 480.00 1,440.00 1,050.00 3,150.00 250.00 750.00 395.00 1,185.00

61. HMA Surface, Rem 4,220 Syd 2.05 8,651.00 3.50 14,770.00 3.80 16,036.00 3.95 16,669.00 9.00 37,980.00

62. HMA, 3C 480 Ton 75.45 36,216.00 80.00 38,400.00 98.60 47,328.00 93.00 44,640.00 95.00 45,600.00

63. HMA, 13A 480 Ton 79.05 37,944.00 83.00 39,840.00 99.20 47,616.00 92.00 44,160.00 95.00 45,600.00

64. Joint, Expansion, E3 58 Ft 8.90 516.20 11.00 638.00 10.50 609.00 11.00 638.00 15.00 870.00

65. _Decorative Conc Pavt, Nonreinf, 8

inch
110 Syd 128.00 14,080.00 75.00 8,250.00 130.00 14,300.00 82.50 9,075.00 100.00 11,000.00

66. Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored 300 Ea 6.80 2,040.00 6.00 1,800.00 5.00 1,500.00 10.50 3,150.00 13.00 3,900.00

67. Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 8 inch 575 Syd 50.90 29,267.50 49.00 28,175.00 55.00 31,625.00 52.00 29,900.00 60.00 34,500.00

68. _Pavt Repr, Rem, Modified 575 Syd 14.85 8,538.75 20.00 11,500.00 20.95 12,046.25 60.00 34,500.00 26.00 14,950.00

69. Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det D2,

Modified
100 Ft 24.50 2,450.00 27.00 2,700.00 20.00 2,000.00 30.00 3,000.00 26.00 2,600.00

70. Detectable Warning Surface 180 Ft 27.35 4,923.00 35.00 6,300.00 40.00 7,200.00 35.50 6,390.00 38.00 6,840.00

71. Curb Ramp Opening, Conc 465 Ft 24.50 11,392.50 27.00 12,555.00 20.00 9,300.00 30.00 13,950.00 22.00 10,230.00

72. Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 1,543 Sft 4.30 6,634.90 5.00 7,715.00 4.25 6,557.75 5.50 8,486.50 4.25 6,557.75

73. _Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 8 inch 1,724 Sft 7.65 13,188.60 7.00 12,068.00 6.00 10,344.00 7.50 12,930.00 6.00 10,344.00

74. Post, Steel, 3 lb 524 Ft 5.20 2,724.80 5.00 2,620.00 4.95 2,593.80 5.15 2,695.98 * 6.75 3,537.00

75. Sign, Type III, Erect, Salv 3 Ea 105.00 315.00 100.00 300.00 100.00 300.00 100.00 300.00 55.00 165.00

76. Sign, Type III, Rem 30 Ea 10.50 315.00 10.00 300.00 10.00 300.00 25.00 750.00 11.00 330.00

Page 4 of 8



Item 

No. Description

Estimated 

Quantity Units Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

Merlo Construction 

3000 East 10 Mile 

James P Contracting, Inc Pro-Line Asphalt Florence Cement Company Hutch Paving 

8505 Terra Bella Drive

2018 HMA Resurfacing Project

AEW PROJECT NO. 0175-0105, 0175-0106, AND 0175-0107 Washington, MI  48095 Washington, MI  48095 Shelby Twp., MI 48315 Warren, MI 48091 Northville, MI 48168

TABULATION OF BIDS

67222 Van Dyke 11797 29 Mile Rd 12585 23 Mile Rd

City of Pleasant Ridge

77. Sign, Type IIIB 55 Sft 16.80 924.00 16.00 880.00 16.00 880.00 30.00 1,650.00 17.00 935.00

78. Pavt Mrkg, Ovly Cold Plastic, 18 inch,

Stop Bar
296 Ft 9.45 2,797.20 9.00 2,664.00 9.00 2,664.00 10.00 2,960.00 10.00 2,960.00

79. Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 4 inch,

White
3,184 Ft 0.42 1,337.28 0.40 1,273.60 0.40 1,273.60 0.45 1,432.80 0.45 1,432.80

80. Barricade, Type III, High Intensity,

Lighted, Furn
30 Ea 58.00 1,740.00 55.00 1,650.00 55.00 1,650.00 28.00 840.00 60.00 1,800.00

81. Barricade, Type III, High Intensity,

Lighted, Oper
30 Ea 0.01 0.30 0.01 0.30 0.01 0.30 28.00 840.00 0.01 0.30

82. Plastic Drum, High Intensity, Furn 25 Ea 18.90 472.50 18.00 450.00 18.00 450.00 10.00 250.00 20.00 500.00

83. Plastic Drum, High Intensity, Oper 25 Ea 0.01 0.25 0.01 0.25 0.01 0.25 10.00 250.00 0.01 0.25

84. Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn 500 Sft 4.20 2,100.00 4.00 2,000.00 4.00 2,000.00 2.50 1,250.00 5.00 2,500.00

85. Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Oper 500 Sft 0.01 5.00 0.01 5.00 0.01 5.00 2.50 1,250.00 0.01 5.00

86. _Pedestrian Type II Barricade, Temp 37 Ea 130.00 4,810.00 125.00 4,625.00 125.00 4,625.00 126.00 4,662.00 130.00 4,810.00

87. Topsoil Surface, Furn, 3 inch 150 Syd 15.35 2,302.50 6.00 900.00 4.16 624.00 15.00 2,250.00 10.00 1,500.00

88. Water, Sodding/Seeding 10 Unit 80.00 800.00 90.00 900.00 65.00 650.00 250.00 2,500.00 78.00 780.00

89. _Hydraulic Seeding 150 Syd 2.10 315.00 2.00 300.00 6.88 1,032.00 13.00 1,950.00 10.00 1,500.00

Total Base Bid for Indiana Avenue 283,889.88 286,829.15 345,317.50 358,029.78 * 384,605.10

Bermuda Avenue

90. _Audio Visual Record of the

Construction Influence Area
1 LS 715.00 715.00 800.00 800.00 725.00 725.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 6,000.00 6,000.00

91. _Mobilization, 3% Max. 1 LS 2,365.00 2,365.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,900.00 2,900.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00

92. Curb and Gutter, Rem 100 Ft 12.00 1,200.00 18.00 1,800.00 11.00 1,100.00 12.00 1,200.00 18.00 1,800.00

93. Sidewalk, Rem 131 Syd 9.30 1,218.30 15.00 1,965.00 15.90 2,082.90 9.00 1,179.00 9.00 1,179.00

94. Excavation, Earth 5 Cyd 64.65 323.25 100.00 500.00 111.00 555.00 65.00 325.00 25.00 125.00

95. _Station Grading 475 Ft 13.70 6,507.50 15.00 7,125.00 28.20 13,395.00 14.50 6,887.50 30.00 14,250.00

96. Subgrade Undercutting, Modified 25 Cyd 52.00 1,300.00 40.00 1,000.00 53.00 1,325.00 45.00 1,125.00 45.00 1,125.00

97. _Erosion Control, Inlet Filter 7 Ea 87.00 609.00 85.00 595.00 94.00 658.00 200.00 1,400.00 140.00 980.00

98. Aggregate Base, 6 inch 1,215 Syd 7.10 8,626.50 6.40 7,776.00 6.75 8,201.25 7.50 9,112.50 9.25 11,238.75

99. HMA Surface, Rem 1,180 Syd 3.90 4,602.00 4.00 4,720.00 5.11 6,029.80 3.95 4,661.00 9.00 10,620.00 *

Page 5 of 8



Item 

No. Description

Estimated 

Quantity Units Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

Merlo Construction 

3000 East 10 Mile 

James P Contracting, Inc Pro-Line Asphalt Florence Cement Company Hutch Paving 

8505 Terra Bella Drive

2018 HMA Resurfacing Project

AEW PROJECT NO. 0175-0105, 0175-0106, AND 0175-0107 Washington, MI  48095 Washington, MI  48095 Shelby Twp., MI 48315 Warren, MI 48091 Northville, MI 48168

TABULATION OF BIDS

67222 Van Dyke 11797 29 Mile Rd 12585 23 Mile Rd

City of Pleasant Ridge

100. HMA, 3C 140 Ton 75.50 10,570.00 88.00 12,320.00 99.40 13,916.00 93.00 13,020.00 95.00 13,300.00

101. HMA, 13A 140 Ton 79.20 11,088.00 91.00 12,740.00 98.90 13,846.00 92.00 12,880.00 95.00 13,300.00

102. Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored 140 Ea 6.80 952.00 6.00 840.00 5.00 700.00 10.00 1,400.00 13.00 1,820.00

103. Pavt Repr, Nonreinf Conc, 8 inch 135 Syd 50.90 6,871.50 49.00 6,615.00 55.00 7,425.00 52.50 7,087.50 60.00 8,100.00

104. _Pavt Repr, Rem, Modified 135 Syd 14.90 2,011.50 22.00 2,970.00 22.25 3,003.75 65.00 8,775.00 25.00 3,375.00

105. _Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det D2,

Modified
100 Ft 27.25 2,725.00 27.00 2,700.00 20.00 2,000.00 30.00 3,000.00 26.00 2,600.00

106. Detectable Warning Surface 80 Ft 27.30 2,184.00 35.00 2,800.00 40.00 3,200.00 36.00 2,880.00 38.00 3,040.00

107. Curb Ramp Opening, Conc 198 Ft 23.00 4,554.00 27.00 5,346.00 20.00 3,960.00 31.00 6,138.00 22.00 4,356.00

108. Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 4 inch 222 Sft 6.40 1,420.80 6.00 1,332.00 5.00 1,110.00 6.50 1,443.00 5.00 1,110.00

109. Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 261 Sft 4.30 1,122.30 5.00 1,305.00 4.25 1,109.25 5.50 1,435.50 4.25 1,109.25

110. _Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 8 inch 770 Sft 7.65 5,890.50 7.00 5,390.00 6.00 4,620.00 7.50 5,775.00 6.00 4,620.00

111. Pavt Mrkg, Ovly Cold Plastic, 18 inch,

Stop Bar
72 Ft 9.45 680.40 9.00 648.00 9.00 648.00 10.00 720.00 10.00 720.00

112. Barricade, Type III, High Intensity,

Lighted, Furn
8 Ea 58.00 464.00 55.00 440.00 55.00 440.00 28.00 224.00 60.00 480.00

113. Barricade, Type III, High Intensity,

Lighted, Oper
8 Ea 0.01 0.08 0.01 0.08 0.01 0.08 28.00 224.00 0.01 0.08

114. Plastic Drum, High Intensity, Furn 35 Ea 18.90 661.50 18.00 630.00 18.00 630.00 10.00 350.00 20.00 700.00

115. Plastic Drum, High Intensity, Oper 35 Ea 0.01 0.35 0.01 0.35 0.01 0.35 10.00 350.00 0.01 0.35

116. Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn 200 Sft 4.20 840.00 4.00 800.00 4.00 800.00 2.50 500.00 5.00 1,000.00

117. Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Oper 200 Sft 0.01 2.00 0.01 2.00 0.01 2.00 2.50 500.00 0.01 2.00

118. _Pedestrian Type II Barricade, Temp 17 Ea 130.00 2,210.00 125.00 2,125.00 125.00 2,125.00 126.00 2,142.00 130.00 2,210.00

119. Topsoil Surface, Furn, 3 inch 50 Syd 15.30 765.00 6.00 300.00 4.16 208.00 15.00 750.00 11.00 550.00

120. Water, Sodding/Seeding 4 Unit 80.00 320.00 90.00 360.00 65.00 260.00 250.00 1,000.00 78.00 312.00

121. _Hydraulic Seeding 50 Syd 2.10 105.00 2.00 100.00 6.88 344.00 13.00 650.00 10.00 500.00

Total Base Bid for Bermuda Avenue 82,904.48 88,544.43 97,319.38 106,634.00 112,522.43 *

Alternate Bid Option A

122. Curb and Gutter, Rem 44 Ft 7.85 345.40 18.00 792.00 8.05 354.20 12.00 528.00 18.00 792.00

123. Excavation, Earth 50 Cyd 13.10 655.00 45.00 2,250.00 14.90 745.00 45.00 2,250.00 25.00 1,250.00

Page 6 of 8



Item 

No. Description

Estimated 

Quantity Units Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

Merlo Construction 

3000 East 10 Mile 

James P Contracting, Inc Pro-Line Asphalt Florence Cement Company Hutch Paving 

8505 Terra Bella Drive

2018 HMA Resurfacing Project

AEW PROJECT NO. 0175-0105, 0175-0106, AND 0175-0107 Washington, MI  48095 Washington, MI  48095 Shelby Twp., MI 48315 Warren, MI 48091 Northville, MI 48168

TABULATION OF BIDS

67222 Van Dyke 11797 29 Mile Rd 12585 23 Mile Rd

City of Pleasant Ridge

124. Aggregate Base, 8 inch 205 Syd 10.15 2,080.75 15.00 3,075.00 7.35 1,506.75 12.75 2,613.75 11.50 2,357.50

125. Conc Pavt with Integral Curb, Nonreinf,

8 inch
194 Syd 50.90 9,874.60 49.00 9,506.00 55.00 10,670.00 52.00 10,088.00 65.00 12,610.00

126. Joint, Expansion, E3 28 Ft 8.95 250.60 11.00 308.00 10.50 294.00 11.00 308.00 15.00 420.00

127. Joint, Plane-of-Weakness W,

Intersection
42 Ft 2.65 111.30 4.00 168.00 5.00 210.00 6.00 252.00 8.00 336.00

128. Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored 20 Ea 6.85 137.00 6.00 120.00 5.00 100.00 11.00 220.00 13.00 260.00

129. _Pavt Repr, Rem, Modified 47 Syd 8.10 380.70 18.00 846.00 18.00 846.00 70.00 3,290.00 25.00 1,175.00

130. Rem Curing Compound, for Spec Mrkg 58 Sft 10.50 609.00 10.00 580.00 10.00 580.00 11.00 638.00 11.00 638.00

131. Topsoil Surface, Furn, 3 inch 60 Syd 13.05 783.00 6.00 360.00 4.15 249.00 17.00 1,020.00 11.00 660.00

132. Water, Sodding/Seeding 4 Unit 80.00 320.00 90.00 360.00 65.00 260.00 250.00 1,000.00 78.00 312.00

133. _Hydraulic Seeding 60 Syd 2.10 126.00 2.00 120.00 6.88 412.80 15.00 900.00 10.00 600.00

Total Bid for Alternate Bid Option A 15,673.35 18,485.00 16,227.75 23,107.75 21,410.50

Alternate Bid Option B

134. Curb and Gutter, Rem 36 Ft 7.85 282.60 21.00 756.00 8.00 288.00 12.00 432.00 18.00 648.00

135. Excavation, Earth 50 Cyd 13.10 655.00 45.00 2,250.00 15.00 750.00 45.00 2,250.00 25.00 1,250.00

136. Aggregate Base, 8 inch 200 Syd 10.15 2,030.00 15.00 3,000.00 7.40 1,480.00 12.75 2,550.00 11.50 2,300.00

137. Conc Pavt with Integral Curb, Nonreinf,

8 inch
190 Syd 50.90 9,671.00 49.00 9,310.00 55.00 10,450.00 52.50 9,975.00 65.00 12,350.00

138. Joint, Expansion, E3 28 Ft 8.95 250.60 11.00 308.00 10.50 294.00 11.00 308.00 15.00 420.00

139. Joint, Plane-of-Weakness W,

Intersection
42 Ft 2.65 111.30 4.00 168.00 5.00 210.00 6.00 252.00 8.00 336.00

140. Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored 20 Ea 6.85 137.00 6.00 120.00 5.00 100.00 11.00 220.00 13.00 260.00

141. _Pavt Repr, Rem, Modified 55 Syd 8.10 445.50 20.00 1,100.00 18.00 990.00 70.00 3,850.00 25.00 1,375.00

142. Rem Curing Compound, for Spec Mrkg 58 Sft 10.50 609.00 10.00 580.00 10.00 580.00 11.00 638.00 11.00 638.00

143. Topsoil Surface, Furn, 3 inch 60 Syd 13.05 783.00 6.00 360.00 4.16 249.60 17.00 1,020.00 11.00 660.00

144. Water, Sodding/Seeding 4 Unit 80.00 320.00 90.00 360.00 65.00 260.00 250.00 1,000.00 88.00 352.00

145. _Hydraulic Seeding 60 Syd 2.10 126.00 2.00 120.00 6.88 412.80 15.00 900.00 11.00 660.00

Total Bid for Alternate Bid Option B 15,421.00 18,432.00 16,064.40 23,395.00 21,249.00

Page 7 of 8



Item 

No. Description

Estimated 

Quantity Units Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

Merlo Construction 

3000 East 10 Mile 

James P Contracting, Inc Pro-Line Asphalt Florence Cement Company Hutch Paving 

8505 Terra Bella Drive

2018 HMA Resurfacing Project

AEW PROJECT NO. 0175-0105, 0175-0106, AND 0175-0107 Washington, MI  48095 Washington, MI  48095 Shelby Twp., MI 48315 Warren, MI 48091 Northville, MI 48168

TABULATION OF BIDS

67222 Van Dyke 11797 29 Mile Rd 12585 23 Mile Rd

City of Pleasant Ridge

Alternate Bid Option C

146. Curb and Gutter, Rem 42 Ft 7.85 329.70 20.00 840.00 8.05 338.10 12.00 504.00 18.00 756.00

147. Excavation, Earth 50 Cyd 13.10 655.00 45.00 2,250.00 15.00 750.00 45.00 2,250.00 25.00 1,250.00

148. Aggregate Base, 8 inch 205 Syd 10.15 2,080.75 15.00 3,075.00 7.40 1,517.00 12.75 2,613.75 11.50 2,357.50

149. Conc Pavt with Integral Curb, Nonreinf,

8 inch
194 Syd 50.90 9,874.60 49.00 9,506.00 55.00 10,670.00 52.50 10,185.00 65.00 12,610.00

150. Joint, Expansion, E3 28 Ft 8.95 250.60 11.00 308.00 10.50 294.00 11.00 308.00 15.00 420.00

151. Joint, Plane-of-Weakness W,

Intersection
42 Ft 2.65 111.30 4.00 168.00 5.00 210.00 6.00 252.00 8.00 336.00

152. Lane Tie, Epoxy Anchored 20 Ea 6.85 137.00 6.00 120.00 5.00 100.00 11.00 220.00 13.00 260.00

153. _Pavt Repr, Rem, Modified 46 Syd 8.10 372.60 20.00 920.00 18.00 828.00 70.00 3,220.00 25.00 1,150.00

154. Rem Curing Compound, for Spec Mrkg 58 Sft 10.50 609.00 10.00 580.00 10.00 580.00 11.00 638.00 11.00 638.00

155. Topsoil Surface, Furn, 3 inch 60 Syd 13.05 783.00 6.00 360.00 4.16 249.60 17.00 1,020.00 11.00 660.00

156. Water, Sodding/Seeding 4 Unit 80.00 320.00 90.00 360.00 65.00 260.00 250.00 1,000.00 88.00 352.00

157. _Hydraulic Seeding 60 Syd 2.10 126.00 2.00 120.00 6.88 412.80 15.00 900.00 10.00 600.00

Total Bid for Alternate Bid Option C 15,649.55 18,607.00 16,209.50 23,110.75 21,389.50

BASE BID TOTAL * *

GRAND TOTAL * *

* CORRECTED BY ENGINEER

675,316.04$   703,702.98$   803,711.03$   

628,572.14$   648,178.98$   755,209.38$   

858,701.28$   929,686.48$   

789,087.78$   865,637.48$   

Page 8 of 8



Civil Engineers

Surveyors

Architects

Engineering

Strong

Communities

Know what's below.
72 hours before you dig.

Call
R



RIDGE

OAKLAND PARK

March 6, 2018

0 20 4010
Feet

±
TaxParcel

ImageServices\EnterpriseOrthoCurrentImageService
RGB

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3

Woodward/OPB

1 inch = 20 feet

36’28’



City of Pleasant Ridge 
James Breuckman, City Manager 

From: Jim Breuckman, City Manager 

To: City Commission 

Date: March 7, 2018 

Re: Ferndale SEMCOG TAP Grant Letters of Support 

Overview 
The City of Ferndale is applying for two Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) grants from MDOT, 

administered through SEMCOG. One is for nonmotorized improvements to Woodward Heights, and the 

other is for a regional bike share system in Southeast Oakland County and Northwest Detroit. The City of 

Pleasant Ridge is not an applicant for either of these grants, and if they are awarded we will not be 

participating in or funding either project. Howerver, Ferndale has requested letters of support from us as 

we are directly adjacent to and located within the service area for each project. 

Background: Regional Bike Share 
The proposed regional bike share system would be an extension of the MoGo system that recently 

launched in the greater downtown Detroit area. The docking stations for the bike share system would be 

publicly supported by each community. There is an installation cost for each station along with annual 

maintenance fees, so even with the TAP grant there would be startup and ongoing costs to participate in 

the system. Exact pricing is not known at this time, but each station will cost $15,000 or more to install, 

depending on the size and features of the station. 

At this time, Pleasant Ridge is not participating in the bike share system for the following reasons: 

• Bike share programs are an important component in the regional effort to increase bicycling,

particularly where there are centers of activity or employment.

• It is as important to create a well-connected regional bike infrastructure system that allows riders

of all ages and abilities to safely and comfortably ride their bikes to and from destinations in our

area.

• Pleasant Ridge has been supportive of efforts to increase bicycling in our local area, and believe

that the effort by our adjacent and nearby communities to develop a bike share system will benefit

all residents and businesses in our area.

• However, staff does not see a use case that would justify the significant upfront and ongoing

maintenance costs for us to have a bike share station or stations within our City. We are primarily

Item 13



SEMCOG TAP Grant Letters of Support 

March 7, 2018 - Page 2 of 3 

residential in character, and the vast majority of trips in our City begin or end at a place of 

residence. This means that our residents can use their own personal bikes if they wish to. Our 

business district also does not have the use density to support or justify the cost of installing 

stations. 

 

For reference, each community was asked to identify potential station locations. Please note that 

Huntington Woods and Madison Heights identified station locations, but have decided to not participate in 

the bike share system at this time. Pleasant Ridge boundaries are shown in red for reference. 

 

 
 

 

As a final note, if the bike share system comes to fruition and is successful, we can add a station or 

stations in Pleasant Ridge at any time in the future. 

 

Background: Woodward Heights Non-Motorized Improvements 
Ferndale is also applying for a TAP grant to fund bike lane improvements on Woodward Heights. Ferndale 

will be resurfacing Woodward Heights in 2019. The TAP grant would fund complete streets improvements 

in addition to the resurfacing.  

 

The Woodward Heights corridor is a primary connection for the existing regional bike route, including 

Pleasant Ridge, Royal Oak, and Hazel Park. The project includes Woodward Heights from Bermuda to 

Lennox and TAP funds are sought to provide high visibility crosswalks and a combination of buffered and 



SEMCOG TAP Grant Letters of Support 

March 7, 2018 - Page 3 of 3 

protected bike lanes (between Horton and Hilton). The project also includes constructing sidewalk along 

the south side of Woodward Heights from Burdette to Horton. Refer to the attached plan sheets for details 

about what is proposed with the project. 

 

Requested Action 
City Commission consideration of a resolution of support for the two TAP grant applications. If a resolution 

of support is passed, we will transmit the attached letters to Ferndale for inclusion in their TAP grant 

applications. 

 

 



 

 

City of Pleasant Ridge 

 

23925 Woodward Avenue, Pleasant Ridge, Michigan 48069 

Phone: 248-541-2901 • Web: www.cityofpleasantridge.org 

City Commission 

Kurt Metzger, Mayor 

Jason Krzysiak 

Ann Perry 

Bret Scott 

Amanda Wahl 

 

City Manager 

James Breuckman 

 
March 7, 2018 
 
Southeast Michigan Council of Governments 
1000 Woodward Avenue 
Suite 1400 
Detroit, MI 48226 
 

Re: Letter of Support for MoGo Regional Hub - TAP Application 
 
Dear TAP Review Committee: 
 
The City of Pleasant Ridge would like to express our full support for the proposed regional MoGo bike share 
hub in Northwest Detroit and Southern Oakland County with funding through the Transportation 
Alternatives Program. As demonstrated by MoGo’s early success in greater Downtown Detroit, creation of a 
regional bike share hub will help provide a flexible, convenient and healthy mobility option for residents and 
visitors to connect to jobs, school, health care, restaurants, retail, and other local businesses along key 
corridors in our area.  
 
Southeast Oakland County and Northwest Detroit feature many nodes of activity such as traditional 
downtowns, educational institutions, and important regional employment clusters. The walkable, close-knit 
pattern of our area is a defining characteristic that our residents and visitors to our area value. Pleasant Ridge 
and our neighboring and nearby communities have collaborated on regional bike infrastructure projects in 
recent years, and adding bike share to our area will help leverage these improvements to grow our local 
economy. 
 
The City of Pleasant Ridge supports the efforts of the City of Ferndale and MoGo to launch a regional bike 
share hub in 2019. With the recent award of a $35,000 Better Bike Share Partnership grant to conduct robust 
community engagement with Detroit and Oakland County residents, MoGo will facilitate a conversation 
about mobility and transportation needs, and how bikeshare can play a role in meeting some of those needs. 
 
Creation of a regional MoGo hub will help build and strengthen connections between neighboring 
communities, broadening people’s experience of the region and contributing to its overall vitality while 
helping to reduce traffic and congestion and promoting healthy, active communities. The City of Pleasant 
Ridge supports the City of Ferndale and MoGo’s efforts to expand bike share for the betterment of all those 
who live, work, and visit Northwest Detroit and Southern Oakland County, and we encourage the Michigan 
Department of Transportation and Southeast Michigan Council of Governments to support these efforts as 
well. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
James Breuckman 
City Manager 



 

 

City of Pleasant Ridge 

 

23925 Woodward Avenue, Pleasant Ridge, Michigan 48069 

Phone: 248-541-2901 • Web: www.cityofpleasantridge.org 

City Commission 

Kurt Metzger, Mayor 

Jason Krzysiak 

Ann Perry 

Bret Scott 

Amanda Wahl 

 

City Manager 

James Breuckman 

 
 
March 7, 2018 
 
Southeast Michigan Council of Governments 
1000 Woodward Avenue 
Suite 1400 
Detroit, MI 48226 
 
 

Re:  Letter of Support for the City of Ferndale Woodward Heights Complete Streets 
Project 

 
 
Dear TAP Review Committee: 
 
The City of Pleasant Ridge would like to express our full support for the Complete Streets 
improvements to Woodward Heights as proposed by the City of Ferndale. Woodward Heights is an 
important regional street that is the primary point of access between Pleasant Ridge and Ferndale, as 
well as other nearby communities to the east and north. It is an important connection between the 
Woodward business district and Gainsboro Park in Pleasant Ridge, to downtown Ferndale, Hazel Park, 
and the Hilton road corridor. 
 
The City of Pleasant Ridge recognizes the importance of bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure in our 
community and the proposed improvements to Woodward Heights in the City of Ferndale align with 
our existing and future non-motorized plans. Building out a regional network of dedicated bicycle lanes 
to create a minimum grid is the most important thing we can do right now to increase the number of 
bicycle trips. 
 
The Woodward Heights project builds upon the strength of the existing Woodward Corridor 
Neighborhood bicycle route by improving dedicated lanes that connect both communities along this 
important link in the regional bike network. This project will provide safe and comfortable dedicated 
bicycle infrastructure that will be attractive to and usable by bicyclists of all ages and abilities. 
 
I enthusiastically submit this letter of support on behalf of the Pleasant Ridge City Commission and our 
residents, and urge the Committee to fund the City of Ferndale’s Woodward Heights Complete Streets 
Improvements project. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
James Breuckman 
City Manager 



G

A

I

N

S

B

O

R

O

B
E

R
M

U
D

A

G
A

I
N

S
B

O
R

O

C

N

 

R

A

I

L

R

O

A

D

H
O

R
T

O
N

P
A

X
T

O
N

I
N

M
A

N

H:
\14

\14
70

0\1
47

87
 F

er
nd

ale
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n P

ro
jec

ts\
14

78
7.2

8 W
oo

dw
ar

d H
eig

hts
 R

es
ur

fac
ing

 (B
er

mu
da

 to
 P

ilg
rim

) 2
01

9\W
W

H 
Go

og
le 

Ma
ps

 O
ve

rla
y W

es
t.d

wg

Copyright © 2018 Giffels Webster.
No reproduction shall be made without the

prior written consent of Giffels Webster.

Developed For:

Engineers
Surveyors
Planners

Landscape Architects

Executive:
Manager:
Designer:
Quality Control:

Project:
Sheet:
Scale:
Date:

ISSUE:DATE:

Date Issue

1025 East Maple Road
Suite 100

Birmingham, MI 48009
p (248) 852-3100
f (313) 962-5068

www.giffelswebster.com

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

1 OF 2

CITY OF FERNDALE

300 EAST NINE MILE
FERNDALE, MI 48220

(248) 546-2519

WOODWARD
HEIGHTS
CONCEPT

(1 OF 2)

CITY OF FERNDALE
OAKLAND COUNTY

MICHIGAN

S.A.R.
J.R.W.
J.R.W.
S.A.R.

02.23.18
1" = 30'

14787.28

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E 

A

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E 

A

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E 

B

12' TRAVEL LANES w/ 5' BIKE LANES

11" TRAVEL LANES w/ 2' BUFFER AND 5' BIKE LANE (WIDENING ON SOUTH SIDE)

WOODWARD
HEIGHTS

0 60'

22x34:  1" = 30'

30'

11x17:  1" = 60'

SIDEWALK EXTENSION

SILENT

CROSSING

SILENT CROSSING

TRANSITION



B
U

R
D

E
T

T
E

W
O

L
C

O
T

T

G
R

A
Y

S
O

N

G
O

O
D

R
I
C

H

W
O

L
C

O
T

T

B
U

R
D

E
T

T
E

G
O

O
D

R
I
C

H

H
I
L
T

O
N

H:
\14

\14
70

0\1
47

87
 F

er
nd

ale
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n P

ro
jec

ts\
14

78
7.2

8 W
oo

dw
ar

d H
eig

hts
 R

es
ur

fac
ing

 (B
er

mu
da

 to
 P

ilg
rim

) 2
01

9\W
W

H 
Go

og
le 

Ma
ps

 O
ve

rla
y W

es
t.d

wg

Copyright © 2018 Giffels Webster.
No reproduction shall be made without the

prior written consent of Giffels Webster.

Developed For:

Engineers
Surveyors
Planners

Landscape Architects

Executive:
Manager:
Designer:
Quality Control:

Project:
Sheet:
Scale:
Date:

ISSUE:DATE:

Date Issue

1025 East Maple Road
Suite 100

Birmingham, MI 48009
p (248) 852-3100
f (313) 962-5068

www.giffelswebster.com

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

1 OF 2

CITY OF FERNDALE

300 EAST NINE MILE
FERNDALE, MI 48220

(248) 546-2519

WOODWARD
HEIGHTS
CONCEPT

(1 OF 2)

CITY OF FERNDALE
OAKLAND COUNTY

MICHIGAN

S.A.R.
J.R.W.
J.R.W.
S.A.R.

02.23.18
1" = 30'

14787.28

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E 

C

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E 

B

11" TRAVEL LANES w/ 2' BUFFER AND 5' BIKE LANE (WIDENING ON SOUTH SIDE)

WOODWARD
HEIGHTS

0 60'

22x34:  1" = 30'

30'

11x17:  1" = 60'

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E 

C

SIDEWALK EXTENSION



M
C

D
O

W
E

L
L

H
A

R
R

I
S

B
O

N
N

E
R

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

H:
\14

\14
70

0\1
47

87
 F

er
nd

ale
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n P

ro
jec

ts\
14

78
7.2

8 W
oo

dw
ar

d H
eig

hts
 R

es
ur

fac
ing

 (B
er

mu
da

 to
 P

ilg
rim

) 2
01

9\W
W

H 
Go

og
le 

Ma
ps

 O
ve

rla
y E

as
t.d

wg

Copyright © 2018 Giffels Webster.
No reproduction shall be made without the

prior written consent of Giffels Webster.

Developed For:

Engineers
Surveyors
Planners

Landscape Architects

Executive:
Manager:
Designer:
Quality Control:

Project:
Sheet:
Scale:
Date:

ISSUE:DATE:

Date Issue

1025 East Maple Road
Suite 100

Birmingham, MI 48009
p (248) 852-3100
f (313) 962-5068

www.giffelswebster.com

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

1 OF 2

CITY OF FERNDALE

300 EAST NINE MILE
FERNDALE, MI 48220

(248) 546-2519

DEDICATED
BIKE LANES
w/ EX WIDTH

(1 OF 2)

CITY OF FERNDALE
OAKLAND COUNTY

MICHIGAN

S.A.R.
J.R.W.
J.R.W.
S.A.R.

02.23.18
1" = 30'

14787.28

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E 

A

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E 

A

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E 

B

11' TRAVEL LANES w/ SHARROWS AND EDGE LINE

11' TRAVEL LANES w/ SHARROWS AND EDGE LINE TRANSITION FROM SHARROWS TO BIKE LANES

11' TRAVEL LANES w/

EB DEDICATED 4' BIKE LANE  AND

 WB BUFFERED 4' BIKE LANE

WOODWARD
HEIGHTS

0 60'

22x34:  1" = 30'

30'

11x17:  1" = 60'



H
U

R
O

N

L
E

N
N

O
X

M
A

R
T

I
N

P
I
L
G

R
I
M

H:
\14

\14
70

0\1
47

87
 F

er
nd

ale
 T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n P

ro
jec

ts\
14

78
7.2

8 W
oo

dw
ar

d H
eig

hts
 R

es
ur

fac
ing

 (B
er

mu
da

 to
 P

ilg
rim

) 2
01

9\W
W

H 
Go

og
le 

Ma
ps

 O
ve

rla
y E

as
t.d

wg

Copyright © 2018 Giffels Webster.
No reproduction shall be made without the

prior written consent of Giffels Webster.

Developed For:

Engineers
Surveyors
Planners

Landscape Architects

Executive:
Manager:
Designer:
Quality Control:

Project:
Sheet:
Scale:
Date:

ISSUE:DATE:

Date Issue

1025 East Maple Road
Suite 100

Birmingham, MI 48009
p (248) 852-3100
f (313) 962-5068

www.giffelswebster.com

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

2 OF 2

CITY OF FERNDALE

300 EAST NINE MILE
FERNDALE, MI 48220

(248) 546-2519

DEDICATED
BIKE LANES
w/ EX WIDTH

(2 OF 2)
WOODWARD

HEIGHTS
CITY OF FERNDALE
OAKLAND COUNTY

MICHIGAN

S.A.R.
J.R.W.
J.R.W.
S.A.R.

02.23.18
1" = 30'

14787.28

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E 

C

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E 

C
M

AT
CH

 L
IN

E 
B

11' TRAVEL LANES w/

EB DEDICATED 4' BIKE LANE AND

WB BUFFERED 4' BIKE LANE

TRANSITION FROM 2 TO 3 LANES

11' TRAVEL LANES AND 10' CLT LANE (NORTH HALF IS CITY OF HAZEL PARK JURISDICTION)

0 60'

22x34:  1" = 30'

30'

11x17:  1" = 60'



1 
 

Example Woodward Heights Street Cross Sections 

Section A – Bermuda to Rail Road Crossing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2 
 

Section B – Horton to Hilton Road 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

Section C – Chester to Lennox 

 


	cc mtg agenda 3-13-2018
	cc mtg wrd & comm 3-13-2018
	Item 8 - FPS Request
	Item 10a -  Minutes
	Item 10b - Disbursements
	Item 10c - Solicit req 7th Day Adventist
	Item 10d - Del Utility Accts
	2018.03.07 - Del Water Memo
	2018.03.07 - Del Water Accounts

	Item 10e - Budget Amendment
	Item 10f -  March for Our Lives Resolution
	Item 11a-h - Police Ordinances
	2018.03-15 - Police Ordinance Introductions Agenda Summary
	1. 2018.03.07 Sec 14-136-143 Alarm ordinance
	2. 2018.03.07 Sec 34-52 unlicensed vehicles amendment
	3. 2018.03.07 Sec 70-21 enhanced OWI traffic amendment
	4. 2018.03.07 Sec 70-86 88 traffic amendment

	Item 12 - Bid Award - HMA Bid
	2018.03.08 Ridge-Indiana-Bermuda Bid Award
	recaward_180302
	0175-0105 Bid Tab
	Alternate A-C Plan Sheet
	Alternate Aerial

	Item 13 - TAP Grant Support
	2018.03.13 TAP Grant Letters of Support Agenda Summary
	SEMCOG Bike Share TAP Letter of Support
	SEMCOG Woodward Hts TAP Letter of Support
	Woodward Heights CS Improvements-Plan View Sketches-FINAL
	WWH West of Hilton
	Sheets and Views
	WWH Google Maps Overlay West-Existing 1

	Sheets and Views
	Existing 2


	WWH Dedicated Bike Lanes w Ex Width
	Sheets and Views
	WWH Google Maps Overlay East-Partial Bike 1
	WWH Google Maps Overlay East-Partial Bike 2



	Woodward Heights Proposed Cross Sections




